Tendring

District Council

Public Document Pack

IAN DAVIDSON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA, ESSEX, CO15 1SE. TELEPHONE (01255) 686868

PREMISES / PERSONAL LICENCES

SUB-COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday, 17 March 2025

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Essex Hall - Town Hall, Station Road,
Clacton-on-Sea, CO15 1SE

MEMBERSHIP:
Councillor Casey (Standby) Councillor J Henderson
Councillor Davidson Councillor Wiggins

Most Council meetings are open to the public and press.

Agendas and Minutes are published on the Council's website
www.tendringdc.gov.uk. Agendas are available to view five working days
prior to the meeting date and the Council aims to publish Minutes within
five working days of the meeting.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, or
on disc, tape, or in other languages.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting, contact
Katie Koppenaal Email: kkoppenaal@tendringdc.gov.uk or Telephone on
01255 686585

Chief Executive www.tendringdc.gov.uk o
lan Davidson Minicom: 01255 475566 g
Y

DATE OF PUBLICATION: Friday, 7 March 2025

N, INVESTORS
& IN PEOPLE

ey

VANIDV


http://www.tendringdc.gov.uk/
http://www.basildon/

AGENDA

Election of a Chairman for the Meeting

The Sub-committee will elect a Chairman for the Meeting.

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

The Committee is asked to note any apologies for absence and substitutions received
from Members.

Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 5 - 8)

To confirm and sign as a correct record, the minutes of the last meeting of the
Committee, held on 20 February 2025.

Declarations of Interest

Councillors are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other
Registerable Interests of Non-Registerable Interests, and the nature of it, in relation to
any item on the agenda.

Report of Assistant Director (Governance & Legal) - A.1 - Review of a Premises
Licence - 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, CO15 3AT (Pages 9 - 128)

To provide information in order that the Sub-Committee can determine the application for
a review of the premises licence.



Date of the Next Scheduled Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Premises / Personal Licences Sub-Committee is to be
held in the at Time Not Specified on Date Not Specified.

Information for Visitors

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE

There is no alarm test scheduled for this meeting. In the event of an alarm sounding, please
calmly make your way out of any of the fire exits in the hall and follow the exit signs out of the
building.

Please heed the instructions given by any member of staff and they will assist you in leaving the
building and direct you to the assembly point.

Please do not re-enter the building until you are advised it is safe to do so by the relevant member
of staff.

Your calmness and assistance is greatly appreciated.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Premises / Personal Licences Sub- 20 February 2025
Committee

42,

43.

44,

45.

46.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PREMISES / PERSONAL LICENCES SUB-
COMMITTEE,
HELD ON THURSDAY, 20TH FEBRUARY, 2025 AT 10.00 AM
IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM - TOWN HALL, STATION ROAD, CLACTON-ON-SEA,

CO15 1SE
Present: Councillors Casey, Codling (Standby), A Cossens and Wiggins
Also Present: Andrew Ward (Essex County Council), James Ravinet (Essex

County Council)

In Attendance: Michael Cook (Licensing Manager), Sarah Opene (Litigation
Lawyer), Katie Koppenaal (Committee Services Officer), Alfie Smith
(Licensing Enforcemnt Officer) and Emma Haward (Leadership
Support Assistant)

ELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING

It was moved by Councillor Casey, seconded by Councillor A Cossens and:-
RESOLVED that Councillor Wiggins be elected as Chairman for the meeting.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

There were no apologies or substitutions on this occasion.

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

It was moved by Councillor A Cossens, seconded by Councillor Casey and:-

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on Monday, 27
January 2025, be approved as a correct record and be signed by the Chairman.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

REPORT OF DIRECTOR (GOVERNANCE & LEGAL) - A.1 - APPLICATION FOR THE
GRANT OF PERMISSION TO SHOW UNCLASSIFIED FILM

The Sub-Committee heard that the Essex International Film Festival would be the first
county-wide event of its kind, celebrating the best of regional and international film
talent. The festival would take place over one-weekend (27th to 30th March 2025) as
the start of an annual initiative ‘jam-packed’ with screenings, masterclasses and
networking events focused on bringing together professional like-minded individuals as
well as providing a platform for emerging industry talent.

Taking place across venues throughout the county, the festival would aim to put Essex

on the map as an industry leading hub for film, supporting local and professional
emerging filmmakers and making world-class independent cinema accessible across

Page 5




Premises / Personal Licences Sub- 20 February 2025
Committee

the county. The festival would be co-directed by three acclaimed industry professionals
including Lily Streames, Charles Sharman-Cox, and lain B. McDonald. The organisers
would also be founders of the Essex Film Collective; a community of talented, reliable
creatives who worked across all areas of the film industry that were based in Essex.

Members were informed that as well as a programme of film, the festival would also
feature a diverse programme of masterclasses and workshops led by leading industry
professionals. Essex International Film Festival would be committed to breaking down
barriers within the industry and providing accessible learning opportunities for all. The
festival would provide a supportive environment to celebrate and elevate the craft of
filmmaking.

The Essex International Film Festival would be supported by the Essex County Council
Arts and Cultural Fund, a dedicated grants programme for arts and cultural projects
across the Essex County Council administrative area.

By assisting the Essex International Film Festival in providing this classification service
at a cost neutral fee, the Council through its Premises / Personal Sub-Committee would
be helping to promote and support the town, the District, the local tourist, leisure
industries, and the work of local independent filmmakers.

In addition, the Electric Palace Harwich was a special venue locally and provides for a
diverse range of film and entertainment that was not always catered for by mainstream
venues and which attracted and brought visitors into Harwich as a result. The theatre
was therefore always an important destination and venue for Tendring’'s tourist and
leisure industry.

The Sub-Committee raised concerns over two of the films (‘Typical’ and ‘While You
Were Sleeping’) in which the synopsis of the films did not reflect correctly what was
viewed in the film. The representative from Essex County Council agreed to pass this on
to the Film Festival representatives to be updated.

Andrew Ward from Essex County Council spoke in support of the Film Festival.

The Chairman (Councillor Wiggins) then adjourned the meeting at this time whilst the
Sub-Committee retired to deliberate. The Litigation Lawyer (Sarah Opene) and
Committee Services Officer (Katie Koppenaal) retired with the Sub-Committee for
observatory reasons only.

After one-hour’s deliberation, the meeting resumed and the Chairman (Councillor
Wiggins) read out a statement as follows:

“The Sub Committee has given careful consideration to this application for the Essex
international film festival taking place between the 27th to 30th March 2025. In reaching
our decision, we have considered our powers under the Licensing Act 2003 and our
policy guidelines as regards film classification.

The Committee is not satisfied that the synopsis for the films Typical and While We

Were Sleeping reflect the films we have watched as such we are declining to rate those
films.

Page 6



Premises / Personal Licences Sub- 20 February 2025
Committee

The Sub-Committee is prepared to grant permission for the other films and has
suggested suitable classifications for them namely:

A Matter of Minutes — 15
Accusatus — 15

All the Time — 12a

Atlas — 12A

Autistic Joy — U

Brownies — 12A

Comme Les Cing Doigts de la Main — 12
Dream Big — U

Dreams — PG

ELSK — To Finnmark with love — U
Estuary Winds — U

Good Choice, Joseph - U
Ha’Penny Dip — 12A
Halfway Between the Land and the Sea — 12A
Hard Times — 15

Harlow Cares — U

Hope Beyond the Threshold — U
| Called You — 12

Little Mary — PG

ManMade — 15

Memory — U

Monk Fruit — PG

Mouse! — 12A

Pas de Deux — 15

Red Bird — 12

Retro—-U

Ring Eclipse — PG
Roadside Funeral — 12
Safe — 12A

Sage — PG

Smokescreen — 12A

Spoor — 15

The Back of the House — 12
The Birdwatchers — U

The Carrot — 12

The Fly - U

The God Man — PG

The Jubilee — PG

The Last Dance — 12

The Metronome — PG

The Outing — PG

The Red Ball — PG

The Wake (Russian) — PG
Tunnels — PG

Whippy — 15

Within the Water - PG

Page 7



Premises / Personal Licences Sub- 20 February 2025
Committee

Kindly note that the recommendations are subject to the Assistant Director
(Governance)’s signing off the Sub-Committee’s recommendations.

There is no right of appeal but the decision can be judicially reviewed.

This Decision is made today, 20th February 2025 and will be confirmed in writing to all
parties”

The meeting was declared closed at 10.43 am

Chairman

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 5

PREMISES/PERSONAL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
17 MARCH 2025
REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (GOVERNANCE & LEGAL)

A. REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE
139 OLD ROAD, CLACTON ON SEA, ESSEX CO15 3AT

REF: 25/00046/PREREV

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To provide information in order that the Sub-Committee can determine the application for a
review of the premises licence.

SUMMARY

Under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 Tendring District Council Licensing Authority,
being a Responsible Authority, has applied for a Review of the Premises Licence currently held
by Mr Suresh Theivendram in respect of the premises known as 139 Old Road, Clacton on
Sea, Essex CO15 3AT (Licence No. 19/00055/PREMVA). In the section of this report headed
“Supporting Information” is a summary of the review application. The full review application is
set out at Appendix A to this report.

Mr Suresh Theivendram has been the Premises Licence holders since the licence was
transferred to him in May 2014, and he has been the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)
of the premises since this date. Details of the current licence which is subject to the review are
set out below.

DETAILS OF CURRENT LICENCE WHICH IS SUBJECT TO REVIEW

Premises
139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex CO15 3AT

Licence No
19/00055/PREMVA

Premises Licence Holder
Mr Suresh Theivendram

Designated Premises Supervisor
Mr Suresh Theivendram

Current Opening Hours
Every Day 00:00 - 00:00

Current Licensable Activities
The current licensable activities permitted by the Premises Licence are:-

Sale of Alcohol off the premises
Every Day 00:00 - 00:00

Page 9




SUPPORTING INFORMATION

An application for the Review of the Premises Licence for 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea,
Essex, has been submitted by the Responsible Authority - Tendring District Council Licensing
Authority. This was received on 27 January 2025 on the grounds that the licensing objectives
in respect of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Public Safety have been breached.

This premises was granted a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 by Tendring
District Council authorising the sale of alcohol off the premises 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
The premises currently operates as a convenience store/off licence.

The premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor is Mr Suresh Theivendram,;
this person is a personal licence holder, reference number TDX1149, issued by Tendring
District Council on 7 September 20009.

The Tendring District Council Licensing Enforcement Officer and Licensing Manager,
alongside Essex Police, have conducted numerous visits to 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea,
Essex, CO15 3AT since September 2024 where numerous breaches of the licensing
conditions have been identified on each occasion.

The licence holder/designated premises supervisor, Mr Suresh Theivendram, has been given
ample opportunity and time since the first inspection and has been made conscious of the
repeated breaches after each inspection has taken place. However, despite copious amounts
of advice being given on numerous occasions, they continue to undermine two core licensing
objectives: the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.

A copy of the Premises Licence Review application is attached to this report in full as a bundle
and is attached as Appendix A.

CONSULTATIONS

Licence holder
The premise licence holder/DPS, Mr Suresh Theivendram, has been duly served the review
application and has not submitted any comments.

Other Responsible Authorities
Two representations supporting the review application have been received. These are from
Essex Police and Essex County Council Trading Standards, with the following comments:

Essex Police

There has been several incidents of violence, theft and disorder over recent months. All
occurring after 11pm. The licensee has failed to support the licensing objectives of

the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.

Essex County Council Trading Standards

Essex Trading Standards would support a licence review of the above premises following a
seizure of 30 packets of illicit tobacco from the premises on 3 December 2024. This matter
has been referred to HMRC for sanctions. This is a category A breach, which for a 1st
contravention is liable to a penalty of £2500.

Full details of the representations from Essex Police and Essex County Council Trading
Standards as Responsible Authorities are attached as Appendix B.

Page 10




In view of the fact that the Licensing Authority in this case is both the administering authority,
including for this hearing, and a responsible authority that has submitted representations there
has been a division of responsibility among relevant staff such that the Head of Democratic
Services and Elections has undertaken such duties and functions of the Licensing Authority as
the administrative body for the review and the Licensing Officer has undertaken such duties
and functions of the Licensing Authority as Responsible Authority for the purposes of
representations and attendance at the hearing. Likewise, other Members of staff in the
licensing team have solely undertaken activities in the roles of either the administrative body or
the Responsible Authority role. No member of staff has undertaken both roles.

Other Persons

Other persons can also make representations regarding review applications. Other persons in
terms of the Licensing Act 2003 can include any individual, body or business and in
accordance with paragraph 8.13 of the Section 182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State
(August 2023 version) which accompanies the Licensing Act 2003, are entitled to make
representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the grant, variation, minor
variation or review of premises licences and club premises certificates, regardless of their
geographic proximity to the premises. In addition, these persons may themselves seek a
review of a premises licence.

Such representations should be relevant and not be considered by the Licensing Authority as
vexatious, repetitious, or frivolous and can be made in opposition to, or support of, an
application and can be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.
The S182 Guidance is silent on whether representations can be made against an application
for a review, or in support of the respondent to the review (which in this case is the Premises
Licence holder Mr Suresh Theivendram). However, given that the Guidance is silent on this
question, but clearly indicates that other persons can make representations in regards to a
review and that representations can be made in support of applications, it is therefore
reasonable to assume that representations can also be made in support of the Premises
Licence Holder Mr Suresh Theivendram in this matter for due consideration by the Licensing
Sub Committee and as part of the Review application hearing process.

The Licensing Authority have received no representations supporting the review application.

FINANCE, OTHER RESOURCES AND RISK

There are no resource implications to the Authority arising directly from the contents of this
report.

The risks in relation to this matter are that the Sub-Committee does not consider all relevant
matters or does not ignore all irrelevant matters in determining the application in this report.
The details submitted and procedures for oral hearings seek to mitigate this risk. The Members
of the Sub-Committee have all undergone mandatory training in licensing matters to further
mitigate this risk.

The parties to this matter have a right of appeal against the Authority’s determination of this
matter. The appeal is to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the determination being
notified to them.

Page 11




COUNCIL’S ADOPTED GUIDELINES AND LEGISLATION

When carrying out its functions the licensing authority must have regard to the four licensing
objectives. The objectives are:

* The prevention of crime and disorder

* Public Safety

» The prevention of public nuisance

* The protection of children from harm

Notice of Display and Advertisement

Notice of the review application has been made and advertised in accordance with Section 51
of the Licensing Act 2003 and the regulations that accompany it. A notice detailing the review
application was clearly displayed on the premises concerned and on the Tendring District
Council Website for the prescribed 28-day period. Periodic checks were undertaken by the
Licensing Authority to ensure that this was the case. The end of the notice period was 24
February 2025.

Validity of Application for Review

The Licensing Authority has accepted the review application and is satisfied that it has been
properly served in accordance with Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the regulations
that accompany it. The Head of Democratic Services and Elections is satisfied that the
application and the representations that it makes are relevant to the licensing objectives.

Licensing Act 2003 Section 182 Guidance with regard to Review Hearings (Version
August 2023)

Sections 11.1 to 11.28 of the Guidance [issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003] assists all parties in respect to advice on review applications and
hearings, including those arising in connection with crime and the relevant extracts of this
guidance are attached to this report as Appendix D. The full Guidance is available online and
paper copies will be available for reference at the hearing.

Tendring District Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy

In accordance with Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, the Authority has adopted a Statement
of Licensing Policy. The relevant sections/extracts of the Council’'s Statement of Licensing
Policy in respect to Review applications are as follows:

Reviews

1.46 Where possible and appropriate the Licensing Authority and all other Responsible
Authorities will give early warning to licence holders of any concerns about
problems identified at premises which may undermine, or are undermining, one
or more of the licensing objectives and to initiate a dialogue that can lead to a
resolution of these problems to the satisfaction of all parties. The review process
represents a valuable protection mechanism for residents and the wider
community to be able address problems with a specific premises where for
instance there is alcohol related crime and disorder or public nuisance and where
for example dialogue between the licence holder, responsible authorities or other
parties concerned such as residents to prevent or mitigate such problems has not
worked.

Page 12




1.47 Responsible authorities, other persons (which could include a resident, business
or Ward Councillor for example) can make an application to trigger a review of a
premises licence but evidence of the problems being experienced would be
required to be presented to the Licensing Authority and an applicant or applicants
for a review would ordinarily be expected to be able to substantiate their
complaints at a Licensing Sub Committee hearing. Representations must be
relevant to one or more of the four licensing objectives and will not be accepted if
they are determined by the Licensing Authority to be frivolous, vexatious or
repetitious.

1.48 No more than one review application from interested parties for a particular
premises other than a Responsible Authority will normally be permitted within any
12-month period on similar grounds except in exceptional and compelling
circumstances.

The full Statement of Licensing Policy is available online and paper copies will be available for
reference at the hearing.

Appeals

An appeal against the decision of the Licensing Authority can be made by the following:
(@ the Applicants
(b)  the holders of the Premises Licence
(c) any person who made relevant representations in relation to the application

The appeal must be made to the Magistrates' Court within a period of 21 days beginning with
the day on which the appellant was notified by the Licensing Authority of its decision.

Options Under Section 52 Licensing Act 2003

Following consideration by this Sub-Committee at this hearing of this review application
submitted by Tendring District Council Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority, Section
52 of the Licensing Act 2003 states that the Licensing Authority must, having regard to the
application and any relevant representations, take such of the steps mentioned in subsection
(4) (if any) as it considers necessary for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. These
steps are:-

(1) to modify the conditions of the licence

(i) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence
(i)  to remove the Designated Premises Supervisor

(iv)  to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months
(v)  torevoke the licence

For this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them are altered or
omitted, or any new conditions are added because of this Review Hearing.

In addition to the above measures, the Sub-Committee is advised that it is also open to it that it
may (for example) decide to take no action in respect of the review application, or issue an
informal/formal warning letter and/or recommend improvement to the premises and its
management within a particular period of time if it concludes that on consideration of the facts
and balance of probabilities, this is the reasonable, proportionate and appropriate approach to
take in regards to the determination of this Review application. If a different outcome is the
reasonable, proportionate, and appropriate approach to take then the options in Section 52 of
the Licensing Act 2003 should be considered.

Page 13




In exercising its discretion, the Authority will have regard to its obligations under Section 17 of
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 concerning the need to exercise its various functions with
regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on and the need to do all that it
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in the area.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

No specific recommendation is made to the Licensing Sub Committee in respect to this
Review application other than to consider the options within Section 52 of the Licensing
Act 2003 (as shown above). The Licensing Sub Committee is asked to reasonably,
proportionately and appropriately determine this application for a Review of a Premises
Licence in respect of the premises and person named as the licence holder in its own
right and on its own merits taking into account all relevant matters detailed in in the
agenda, report and accompanying papers and any other relevant matters that may
introduced at the hearing itself by any of the parties that have an interest in this Review
hearing.

APPENDICES

Appendix A - Premises Licence Review application

Appendix B - Letters of Support from Essex Police, Immigration Office and
Essex County Council Trading Standards

Appendix C - Location Plan

Appendix D - Extract from the Secretary of State’s Guidance under S182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

Appendix E - Hearing Procedures

Appendix F - Additional Information following visit with Immigration

REPORT CONTACT OFFICER(S)

Name Keith Simmons
Emma King

Job Title Head of Democratic Services & Elections
Licensing Officer

Email/Telephone licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk
01255 686565

Page 14



mailto:licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

APPENDIX A

Tendring District Council
Licensing Office, Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex, CO15 1SE
Tel: 01255 686565 Email: licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Acting on behalf of the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority
(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
139 Old Road

Post town Clacton on Sea Post code (if known) CO15 3AT

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Mr Suresh Theivendram

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
19/00055/PREMVA

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick v" yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

Page 15


mailto:licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

APPENDIX A

3) a member of the club to which this application relates ]
(please complete (A) below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick v" yes

Mr ] Mrs  [] Miss [ ] Ms ] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 16



APPENDIX A

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority
Tendring District Council

Town Hall

Station Road

Clacton On Sea

CO15 1SE

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)
licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety X
3) the prevention of public nuisance ]
4) the protection of children from harm ]

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

This premises was granted a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 by Tendring District
Council authorising the sale of alcohol off of the premises 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The
premises currently operates as a convenience store / off licence.

The premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor is Mr Suresh Theivendram; this
person is a personal licence holder, reference number TDX1149, issued by Tendring District
Council on 07.09.20009.

The Tendring District Council Licensing Enforcement Officer and Licensing Manager, alongside
Essex Police, have conducted numerous visits to 139 Old Road, Clacton On Sea, Essex, CO15
3AT since September 2024 where numerous breaches of the licensing conditions have been
identified on each occasion.

The licence holder / designated premises supervisor, Mr Suresh Theivendram, has been given
ample opportunity and time since the first inspection and has been made conscious of the repeated
breaches after each inspection has taken place. However, despite copious amounts of advice being
given on numerous occasions, they still continue to undermine two core licensing objectives: the
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.

Page 17



APPENDIX A

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

139 Old Road (known to be trading as Clacton Local) is located at 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea,
Essex, CO15 3AT.

The premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor is Mr Suresh Theivendram; this
person is a personal licence holder, reference number TDX1149 issued by Tendring District
Council on 07.09.2009.

There has been four premises licence inspections between the dates of 18.09.2024 and 13.01.2025.

There have also been two meetings with Mr Suresh Theivendram. The first taking place on
26.09.2024 and the second meeting taking place on 08.10.2024.

Please note the timeline of events below:

First inspection — 18.09.2024 — condition breaches identified.

Annex 2 (1)
Annex 2 (4)
Annex 2A (6)
Annex 2A (8)
Annex 2A (11)
Annex 3 (13)

Sk wnE

Incorrect premises licence also displayed in contravention of S.57 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Enforcement letter sent — 20.09.2024

First meeting with licence holder / DPS — 26.09.2024

- All breaches of conditions discussed.

Second Inspection — 04.10.2024 — condition breaches identified

Annex 2 (4)
Annex 2A (6)
Annex 2A (8)
Annex 2A (11)
Annex 3 (13)

agrwpdE

Second meeting with licence holder / DPS — 08.10.2024

- Second inspection discussed; advice given regarding breaches.

Third Inspection — 18.10.2024 — condition breaches identified

1. Annex 2 (4)
2. Annex 2A (6)
3. Annex 2A (8)

Page 18



APPENDIX A

4. Annex 2A (11)
5. Annex 3 (13)

Note: Super strength alcohol having ABV content above 6.5% or higher had been removed from
shelves but was still available as stacked at back of the store.

Enforcement letter sent — 21.10.2024

Fourth Inspection — 13.01.2025 — condition breaches identified.

Annex 2 (2)
Annex 2A (9)
Annex 2A (11)
Annex 3 (13)

PR

Enforcement letter sent — 17.01.2025

A full supplementary bundle will be provided within 28 days.

Premises licence attached.

Page 19



APPENDIX A

Please tick v" yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the ]
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

HEEEEEEN

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Page 20



APPENDIX A

Please tick v’
yes

e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e | understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO AFINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature  A. Sl

Capacity  Licensing Enforcement Officer

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

A Smith

Tendring District Council Licensing Authority

Town Hall

Station Road

Post town Post Code
Clacton on Sea CO15 1SE

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional) licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. Aresponsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

n

o &

Page 21



Schedule 12
Part A

Tendring District Council
Premises Licence

APPENDIX A

Regulation 33,34

Premises Licence Number 19/00055/PREMVA

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including

Post Town, Post Code
139 Old Road
Clacton On Sea
Essex
CO15 3AT

Telephone number 01255 470002

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not Applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale of Alcohol off the premises

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Sale of Alcohol off the premises
Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

Non Standard Timings

Not Applicable

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Sale of Alcohol off the premises

Page 22




APPENDIX A

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence
Mr Suresh Theivendram
139 Old Road
Clacton on Sea
Essex
CO15 3AT

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Not Applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Suresh Theivendram

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Personal Licence Number TDX1149

Licensing Authority Tendring District Council

for and on behalf of the Licensing Authority

Paul Price
CORPORATE DIRECTOR
Dated: 2 April 2019

Page 23




APPENDIX A

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

1

No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:-

(a) At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence, or

(b) At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds
a Personal Licence.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification
policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(a);

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -

P=D + (D.V)

where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(i) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "valued added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994(a).

Page 24



APPENDIX A

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price
actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a
day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as
a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which
take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1
2

Notices shall be clearly displayed inside the premises indicating that a CCTV system is in operation.

The Licenceholder shall retain all video tapes/DVD discs for a period of 28 days and shall make them
available to the Police or an authorised Officer of the Council on demand.

The premises will operate a "Challenge 25" scheme, or equivalent, requiring those appearing to be 25
years or under to be asked for accredited identification as to their age.

In order to positively assist with the promotion of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the
Prevention of Public Nuisance Licensing objectives under the Licensing Act 2003, this premises
voluntarily supports the Tendring Community Safety Partnership Reducing the Strength scheme to not
sell Super Strength Beer, Lager and Cider defined as having an Alcohol By Volume (ABV) content of
between 6.5% and 12% at very low prices, e.g. for considerably less than its RRP or at a level which
may attract or encourage street drinking and alcohol related anti-social behaviour. This voluntary
agreement does not apply in respect of specialist or branded, premium priced products such as craft
ales, local or micro - brewery specialist products, boxed gifts or national celebratory/commemorative
Beer, Lager or Cider with an ABV content of 6.5% or greater.

Any conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule not specified above.

Annex 2A — Conditions as agreed with Essex Police

6

10

No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or Cider, having an Alcohol By Volume (ABV) content of
6.5% or higher, will be sold at any time.

A formal "Challenge 25" scheme shall be adopted, of which any persons who appears to be under the
age of 25 shall have to establish they are over the age of 18 years by an approved ID(Passport, Full
Driving Licence, or othe Photo ID, formally approved by Essex Trading Standards.

The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a Refusal/Incident book to record all refusals, or persons challenged
for ID relating to the sale of alcohol. This record will be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority for
inspection on request.

CCTV of a type approved by the Local Authority to be installed, which covers all parts of the shop to
which the public have access and to include the are immediately outside the premises entrance.The
images to be retained for 28 days minimum, and made available on reasonable demand to the Police
and Local Authority. The lighting of the premises will be such that the CCTV operates at the best
possible level.

The DPS/Licence Holder will take all resonable steps to prevent youths gathering outside the immediate
front of the premises.

Page 25



APPENDIX A

11 The premises operators shall join TENBAC and retain membership during the life of the Premises
Licence.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

12 A Personal Licence holder shall be on duty and in the retail part of the shop premises at all times the
premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol.

13 At least two members of staff must be present in the shop at all times the premises are open to the
public for the sale of alcohol.

Annex 4 — Plans

Plans are attached to this Licence

Page 26



APPENDIX A

Premises Licence Review

139 OIld Road
Clacton On Sea

Essex

CO15 3AT

(Trading as “Clacton Local”)

Page 27



APPENDIX A

Contents

CASE SUMIMANY ...ttt e et e e e et e e e e taea e e e eetane e e eeeanaeeeees 3
Licensed Premises HiStOrY ......couu it e e e 4
Routine Inspection dated 18" September 2024............ccooeeeeiiviiiieeeeeeeeciieeeeeeee, 5
Meeting One 261 September 2024 ...........cooeeeeiuireeeeeee e 8
Routine Inspection dated 4" October 2024 ............c..oeeeeeeveieeeeeiieee e 10
Meeting TWo 81 OCtODEr 2024 .........ovvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 13
Routine Inspection dated 18" October 2024 .............ooeviiieeeeeiiiiiiieieeee e, 14
Routine Inspection dated 13" January 2025 ........c.c.cveveeeeeeeeeeeciiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneee 16
Review Papers Served 27 January 2025 .........cccoveeeeeecniieeeeeiiieee e 17
REASONS fOr REVIEW ...t 19

The Prevention of Crime and DiSOrder ........cuviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e, 19

Public Safety & The Prevention of Public NUIiSANCEe .....cevieiiiiviiiiiiiiiicciiveeeeens 21
OULCOME SOUGNL ...ttt ee e eea e 22
Y o] 1= oo ) QUSRS PP UPPRRPPPIN 24

2
Page 28



APPENDIX A

Case Summary

Between 18" September 2024 and 13™ January 2025, Tendring District Council
Licensing Team have conducted four separate inspections at 139 Old Road, Clacton
on Sea, Essex, CO15 3AT (trading as Clacton Local). During each inspection,
numerous breaches of licence conditions were identified, and advice was given to
encourage compliance with licence conditions. Two meetings have taken place with
the Designated Premises Supervisor / licence holder, where the breaches of were
discussed, and further advice given to encourage compliance with the conditions

breached.

Despite the recommendations by the Licensing Team to the Designated Premises
Supervisor, minimal changes have been made, and the premises continues to breach

multiple conditions.

3
Page 29



APPENDIX A

Licensed Premises History

The premises licence number is 19/00055/PREMVA issued by Tendring District
Council was granted on 02.04.2019; the licence holder is Mr Suresh Theivendram.

The Designated Premises Supervisor is also detailed as Mr Suresh Theivendram.

The premises is licenced for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises
Monday — Sunday 00:00hrs to 00:00hrs (24 hours).

4
Page 30



APPENDIX A

Routine Inspection dated
18" September 2024

Licensing Enforcement Officer, Alfie Smith and Licensing Manager, Michael Cook
attended 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex on Wednesday 18™" September 2024
where a routine inspection was started at 13:58hrs. This was a joint inspection with

Immigration Enforcement.

The Designated Premises Supervisor was not present at the premises at the time of
the inspection, but staff member Kilimoly Tharmathas was in charge of the premises
at the time of the inspection and was available to answer questions regarding the

premises licence.

Incorrect Premises Licence Displayed

Licence Enforcement Officer, Alfie Smith requested to see the premises licence, which
is required to be on display inside of the premises by virtue of Section 57 of the
Licensing Act 2003. Tharmathas initially did not know where the premises licence was
displayed and the premises licence, but this was located by Michael Cook. It was soon
identified that the licence displayed inside of the premises was a historic copy,
reference number 15/00046/PREMVA.

Breach of Condition: Annex 2 (1) “Notices shall be clearly displayed inside the

premises indicating that a CCTV system is in operation”.

During the inspection, Tharmathas was made aware of the requirement for notices to
be displayed inside of the premises indicating that a CCTV system is in operation and
the location of the notices was requested by Tharmathas before officers were informed

that there are no such notices inside of the premises.

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (6) — “No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or

Cider, having an Alcohol by Volume (ABV) content of 6.5% or higher, will be sold at
any time”.

5
Page 31



APPENDIX A

During the inspection, officers inspected the alcohol on sale in the premises and
brands of alcohol (single cans) with an ABV content of 6.5 or higher were identified

inside of the premises (Appendix C).

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (8) — “The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a

Refusal/lncident book to record all refusals, or persons challenged for ID relating to

the sale of alcohol. This record will be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority

for inspection on request.”

During the inspection, officers requested to see the refusals and incident book where
it was identified that neither are being completed. Tharmathas stated that the till which
is used has a prompt which asks whether a customer is over 18 at the time of the sale
but after further questioning it was identified that the till prompt is not capable of
generating reports providing any information about the refusal which would be required

by a refusal log, such as:

Date/Time of Refusal
Product

Reason for refusal
Description of individual
Action taken

Staff signature
Signature of DPS.

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (11) — “The premises operators shall join TENBAC and

retain membership during the life of the Premises Licence”.

TENBAC no longer exists, however, there are new memberships such as “Shop Safe”
which allows premises operators to maintain contact with each other to provide
information about offenders and their movements around the Tendring area. At the
time of the inspection, the premises was not operating a TENBAC or equivalent

scheme.

Condition Breach: Annex 3 (13) — “At least two members of staff must be present in

the shop at all times the premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol”.

6
Page 32



APPENDIX A

Upon entering the premises for the inspection, Tharmathas was found behind the store
counter and was the only staff member on duty inside of the premises at the time of
the inspection. There was an additional male found inside of the premises who was
questioned by Immigration Enforcement, however, this individual insisted that he was
not working at the shop and Tharmathas supported this. For the duration of the
inspection, no additional staff members were identified inside of the store.

At the end of the inspection, Alfie Smith, spoke with the Designated Premises
Supervisor Mr Suresh Theivendram on the telephone, where he was made aware of
the copious breaches which were identified during the inspection and informed that he
will need to make immediate changes to ensure compliance with the conditions on his
premises licence. During the telephone call, Mr Suresh Theivendram agreed to attend
Clacton Town Hall on Thursday 26/09/2024 at 1pm for a meeting regarding the licence

conditions.

Further to this, an enforcement letter, dated Friday 20" September 2024 was sent to
Mr Suresh Theivendram at 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex (Appendix D)

Please see Appendix K — Inspection document 18.09.2024 in relation to this visit.

7
Page 33



APPENDIX A

Meeting One
26" September 2024

Mr Suresh Theivendram attended Clacton Town Hall at 1pm on Thursday 26%"
September 2024 for a meeting with Licensing Enforcement Officer Alfie Smith and

Police Licensing Officer, Steven Bennett.

During the meeting, Suresh Theivendram confirmed that he had received the

enforcement letter detailing the breaches identified during the inspection.
During the meeting, the issues identified in the first inspection were discussed:

Mr Suresh Theivendram was informed that in order to comply with the Licensing Act
2003, he needs to display PART B the correct premises licence inside of the shop.
Suresh was made aware that if he cannot find his copy of the premises licence, then
he can purchase another for a fee of £10.50 by calling the licensing team. Contact

details for licensing team confirmed in the meeting.

Suresh was informed that he needs to display notices inside of the premises clearly
stating that CCTV is in operation and that the signage needs to be on display in a

place where customers can see it.

Suresh was also informed that he needs to have at least two staff members inside of
the shop at all times that the premises is open to the public for the sale of alcohol.
When this point was raised Suresh mentioned that due to new shops opening in the
area, which has created more competition for him, he cannot afford to have two
members of staff in the store. Alfie Smith informed Suresh that he should look into a
minor variation which is an application which would allow him to vary his premises
licence conditions. Alfie advised Suresh that if he submitted this application, the
Licensing Authority could consider the removal of certain conditions on his licence, but

this is not guaranteed.

8
Page 34



APPENDIX A

Suresh was also reminded that his store is open for 24 hours and that the condition

requiring two members of staff in the store has a number of benefits, such as:

1. Enhanced Security: With two staff members, there’s an added layer of security.
This can help deter theft and handle any potential security issues more

effectively.

2. Emergency Situations: In case of an emergency, having two staff members
means one can handle the situation while the other continues to manage the

shop or call for help.

Suresh was made aware that he cannot sell any single cans of super strength beer,
larger or cider with an alcohol by volume content of 6.5% or higher. Suresh was unclear
about why this applies to him and not other premises in the area. Suresh also said that
he orders his stock from Bookers, and that they sell all fully legitimate alcohol, so he
does not see why it is a problem. | informed Suresh that the conditions on his licence
would have been agreed at the time of his application for the licence, and he would

have been made fully aware of the conditions at this time.

Suresh was also reminded of the condition on his licence relating to TENBAC. Suresh
was told that previously TENBAC was an initiative in the Tendring Area which was
aimed at reducing crime, specifically shoplifting in local businesses, by encouraging
business to work together and share information about offenders and suspicious
activities in premises. Suresh was made aware that this scheme no longer exists but

there are alternative schemes that he should look into online.

Suresh was given until the 3" of October 2024 to resolve the issues outlined to him in
the initial enforcement letter, and the meeting or to risk further enforcement action.
Suresh was made aware that he must ensure that there are two staff members inside

the shop at all times.

Following this meeting, an enforcement letter was sent, summarising all the matters

discussed (Appendix E).

9
Page 35



APPENDIX A

Routine Inspection dated
4" October 2024

Licensing Enforcement Officer, Alfie Smith and Essex Police Licensing Officer, Steven
Bennett attended 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex at 11:25am on Friday 4%

October 2024.

Upon arrival at the premises, the DPS was not present and there was one member of staff
presentin the premises. An additional member of staff arrived at the premises during the

inspection.

Changes implemented since meeting.

During this inspection it was noted that the correct premises licence was now
displayed inside of the premises, in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003.

It was also noted that there were not clear notices showing that CCTV is in operation
at the premises. This notice was placed in an area which is visible to the public upon

customers entering the premises.

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (6) — “No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or

Cider, having an Alcohol by Volume (ABV) content of 6.5% or higher, will be sold at
any time”.

In contravention of the above two conditions outlined. It was noted in the inspection
by both Alfie Smith and Steven Bennett that the high strength alcohol with an ABV of
6.5% or higher which was identified in the last inspection had been removed. However,
the alcohol removed from the shelves had been replaced with an alternative (single
cans) with an ABV of 6.5% or higher (Appendix F)

1. Kestrel Super Premium Strength Lager, 9%
2. Omega White Cider, 7.5%
3. Dragon Scoop, 7.5%

10
Page 36



APPENDIX A

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (8) — “The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a
Refusal/lncident book to record all refusals, or persons challenged for ID relating to

the sale of alcohol. This record will be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority

for inspection on request.”

Following the advice given to the DPS in the first inspection, the previous enforcement
letters and during the meeting at Town Hall on 26" September 2024, when staff
member Kilimoly Tharmathas was asked by officers to present the refusal / incident
book nothing could be present. Kilimoly Tharmathas again pointed out that the till
which is used has prompts which asks members of staff if customers are meet the
legal age requirements to buy alcohol. However, the licensing officers in attendance
explained that this measure is not sufficient as records cannot be produce and the till
prompt does not record any details of the interaction. During the inspection, Kilimoly
Tharmathas was informed that this had been discussed at a meeting with the DPS,
but it became clear to officers in attendance that no refusals log / incident book had

been implemented.

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (11) — “The premises operators shall join TENBAC and

retain membership during the life of the Premises Licence”.

During the inspection, it was identified that no initiative similar to TENBAC had been

introduced.

Condition Breach: Annex 3 (13) — “At least two members of staff must be present in

the shop at all times the premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol”.

Upon arrival at the premises officers noted that there was only one staff member on
duty in the shop. Neither the DPS nor Kilimoly Tharmathas were present in the store.
The inspection was started and the member of staff on duty called Kilimoly Tharmathas
to alert her that licensing officers were in attendance. Kilimoly Tharmathas arrived a
short time after this call was made. It was raised again with Kilimoly Tharmathas that
there needs to be two members of staff on duty whilst the shop is open for the sale of
alcohol and Kilimoly Tharmathas commented that she was close by and has arrived
quickly. Kilimoly Tharmathas was reminded very clearly that, if there are not two
members of staff on duty, as specified by the license condition, the condition will be

breached, irrespective of how far away someone is if they are needed. During the

11
Page 37



APPENDIX A

inspection, Kilimoly Tharmathas mentioned that they are currently in the process of

hiring more staff members so that they could adhere to the condition on the licence.

Please see Appendix L — Inspection document 04.10.2024 in relation to this visit.

12
Page 38



APPENDIX A

Meeting Two
8t October 2024

Suresh visited Clacton Town Hall on Tuesday 8™ October 2024 (without appointment)

and asked how the inspection went on 4t October 2024.

During the meeting, Alfie Smith pointed out to Suresh that the recommendations that
he and Steve Bennett made were not implemented. Alfie also mentioned that there
was only one member of staff present in the store before Kilimoly Tharmathas arrived.
Suresh was told very clearly, again, that there needs to be two members of staff on
duty whilst the store is open to the public for the sale of alcohol. Suresh commented
that he cannot financially afford to keep two staff members in the store due to the
business lost due to local competition. Alfie told Suresh that the application for a minor
variation has been sent to him, along with the enforcement letters explaining the issues
but Suresh asked if they could be sent again. Suresh confirmed that he has our email
address and that he will email in requesting the forms so | can send them to him. | also
advised Suresh that the forms are online if he wishes to look and complete them as

this will be easier and faster than completing the paper application.

Suresh did not email to request any applications, and no applications were received

following this meeting.

13
Page 39



APPENDIX A

Routine Inspection dated
18" October 2024

Inspection started at 11:40am on 18" October 2024. Officers Alfie Smith and Michael
Cook in attendance. DPS not present during the visit. Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas was

staff member present in the premises.

Changes Implemented

All alcohol with an ABV of 6.5% or higher had been removed from the shelves
but stacked at the back of the shop in the view of customers.

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (6) — “No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or

Cider, having an Alcohol by Volume (ABV) content of 6.5% or higher, will be sold at
any time”.

In regard to the conditions outlined above, during the inspection it was noted that all
alcohol with an ABV of 6.5% or higher had been removed from shelves in the premises.
However, all of the alcohol removed from the shelves was sat in packaging and
stacked up in the view of customers at the back of the shop. The packaging seemed
unbroken, so it was not possible to tell if alcohol was being sold, but it was on view to

customers and accessible to staff if they did wish to sell the alcohol. (Appendix G)

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (8) — “The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a
Refusal/lncident book to record all refusals, or persons challenged for ID relating to

the sale of alcohol. This record will be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority

for inspection on request.”

Whilst conducting the inspection, officers requested to see the refusal / incident book
and were made aware that nothing had been implemented. The staff member present
in the store mentioned the till prompt procedure in place which asks the staff member

completing the transaction whether the individual purchasing goods is 18 or over.

14
Page 40



APPENDIX A

Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas was the only staff member in the premises and was told
during the inspection that the till prompt had been explained to officers in the past and
this was not sufficient. Kilimoly Tharmathas was reminded that she was in attendance

at the premises when officers spoke about this.

Condition Breach: Annex 2A (11) — “The premises operators shall join TENBAC and

retain membership during the life of the Premises Licence”.

During the inspection, no alternative to TENBAC was identified, as previously advised.

Condition Breach: Annex 3 (13) — “At least two members of staff must be present in

the shop at all times the premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol”.

Initially, Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas was the only staff member present when the
inspection was started. After approximately 40 minutes, an additional staff member
arrived, stating that they were on a break. Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas was satisfied that
two members of staff were not present in the premises. However, officers in
attendance clarified with Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas that when they arrived that there
was still only one staff member present in the shop, and this constitutes a breach of

conditions.

Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas explained that the staff working at the premises are entitled
to breaks and both officers in attendance agreed but explained that if there are two
members of staff at the premises and one goes for a break, there needs to be an
additional staff member who is not on a break. In keeping with the condition that there
needs to be two staff members present in the shop at all times that the premises is
open to the public for the sale of alcohol. Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas stated that they

cannot afford to hire more staff members at the shop.

Actions taken by Licensing Authority following inspection

Refusals log provided.
Enforcement letter sent detailing the breaches which took place was sent on
21.10.2024 (Appendix H).

Please see Appendix M — Inspection document 18.10.2024 in relation to this visit.

15
Page 41



APPENDIX A

Routine Inspection dated
13" January 2025

Alfie Smith (Licensing Enforcement Officer) and Michael Cook (Licensing Manager)
attended 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, CO15 3AT for a routine inspection.

Condition breach: Annex 2 (2) — “The Licence holder shall retain all video tapes/DVD
discs for a period of 28 days and shall make them available to the Police or an
authorised Officer of the Council on demand”.

During the inspection, Licensing Officers asked to see the backed-up CCTV footage
for the premises and were informed that the CCTV system had not been working since
October 2024. It was mentioned by Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas that following an incident
at the premises, Essex Police attended and requested the CCTV footage, and this is
when they discovered the system was not working.

Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas stated that they are currently waiting for an insurance claim
to be completed so that they can have the CCTV cameras repaired but Miss Kilimoly
also stated that she does not know when the money would come. Miss Kilimoly was
told that it is not appropriate to wait to get the CCTV system repaired and that a
deadline will be given for the CCTV system to be repaired.

Following the inspection, an enforcement letter was sent to the licence holder, Suresh,
wherein he was told that the CCTV will need to be repaired before Monday 17t
January 2025.

Condition breach: Annex 2A (9) — “CCTV of a type approved by the Local Authority to
be installed, which covers all parts of the shop to which the public have access and to
include the are immediately outside the premises entrance. The images to be retained
for 28 days minimum and made available on reasonable demand to the Police and
Local Authority. The lighting of the premises will be such that the CCTV operates at
the best possible level.”

Condition breach: Annex 3 (13) — “At least two members of staff must be present in
the shop at all times the premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol”.

During the inspection Miss Kilimoly informed Licensing Officers that their second
member of staff called in sick. Miss Kilimoly was reminded during the inspection that
there needs to be two members of staff whilst the premises are open to the public for
the sale of alcohol and Miss Kilimoly apologised for this.

After this inspection, a further enforcement letter was sent, outlining the issues

identified during the visit (Appendix I).

16
Page 42



APPENDIX A

Please see Appendix N — Inspection document 13.01.2025 in relation to this visit.

Review Papers Served
27" January 2025

Licensing Enforcement Officer and Licensing Manager, Michael Cook served the
review notice to directly to Suresh Theivendram at approximately 11:33am on Monday
271 January 2025. 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex, CO15 3AT.

During attendance at the premises licensing officers noted that there was a male staff
member behind the counter who informed them that Suresh was not at the shop today.
The staff member confirmed that he was the only person in the shop until 14:00hrs.

The member of staff in charge of the premises called Suresh and informed and asked
him to attend the premises. When Suresh arrived, the review papers were served
directly to him and the review notice was put on display inside the premises by Alfie
Smith.

Whilst in attendance at the premises Suresh stated that he needs support from the
local council to rectify the issues at the premises. Alfie explained that Suresh has been
supported but it was due to the issues not being rectified after advice has been given,

that the review is being sought.

Before leaving, Alfie asked the un-named member of staff that was in the premises on
his own, if he was a personal licence holder, and it was confirmed that he was not.
Further to this, Michael Cook asked Suresh if the CCTV had been repaired, and
Suresh confirmed that the CCTV was working, but does not save any footage, so it

would not be able to be provided to Responsible Authorities if required.
3 breaches of conditions noted:

1. Annex 2A (9) CCTV of a type approved by the Local Authority to be installed,
which covers all parts of the shop to which the public have access and to include
the are immediately outside the premises entrance. The images to be retained
for 28 days minimum and made available on reasonable demand to the Police

17
Page 43



APPENDIX A

and Local Authority. The lighting of the premises will be such that the CCTV

operates at the best possible level.

2. Annex 3 (12) A Personal Licence holder shall be on duty and in the retail part
of the shop premises at all times the premises are open to the public for the

sale of alcohol.

3. Annex 3 (13) At least two members of staff must be present in the shop at all

times the premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol.

It was noted during this inspection that the CCTV still had not been repaired.

18
Page 44



APPENDIX A

Reasons for Review

Between 18.09.2024 and 13.01.2025, licensing officers have visited 139 Old Road,
Clacton on Sea, Essex on five separate occasions; on each occasion several
breaches of premises licence conditions have been identified. The licensing team have
attempted to provide education to the Designated Premises Supervisor and advise on
how he can ensure that the conditions are adhered to. However, several months have
now passed since the first inspection was completed and whilst it is recognised that
small changes have been introduced to the premises to ensure compliance in regard
to some conditions, there are still numerous conditions on the licence which seem to

be ignored.

The licensing team have met with the DPS on two separate occasions to provide
education and advise on how conditions may be adhered to. However, despite the
support from the licensing team, the DPS has failed to make any substantial progress
to adhere to the conditions on their licence conditions. It is clear that although advice
continues to be provided, the DPS is unable to adhere to the conditions on the

premises licence and uphold the four licensing objectives:

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

> Dbdh =

The Protection of Children from Harm

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

In this particular case, the licence holder has failed in the prevention of crime and
disorder as they have failed to ensure that their CCTV is backed up for a period of 28
days and is available to police or an authorised officer of the council on demand. The
presence of visible CCTV is an important deterrent to potential criminals from
engaging in illegal activities. CCTV also allows for continuous monitoring of the
premises which can help is identifying suspicious behaviour and taking preventative
measures before crime can occur. Further to this, in the event of a crime, CCTV
footage provides valuable evidence that can be used by police to identify offenders

and assist in criminal prosecutions.

19
Page 45



APPENDIX A

The licensing team have been informed by a Miss Kilimoly Tharmathas that the CCTV

has been inoperational since the end of October 2024.

The licence holder has failed to ensure that two members of staff are present in the
store whilst the premises is open for the sale of alcohol. On every single occasion that
licensing officers have visited the premises, they have witnessed only one member of
staff on duty. The presence of additional staff members acts as a deterrent to potential
offenders as multiple staff can more effectively monitor different areas of the store,
ensuring that any suspicious behaviour is quickly identified and addressed. Further to
this, having multiple staff members present in the store means that staff members can
support each other in the event of challenging situations and provide backup to ensure
that both members of staff are kept safe in the event of an emergency. The licence
holder has previously told licensing officers that he cannot afford to keep two members
of staff inside of the premises at all times and that he always keeps someone close by
in the case of any incidents. However, on multiple occasions, the licence holder has
been made aware that this is not sufficient and does not support in the prevention of

crime and disorder.

During the inspection on 31.01.2025, licensing officers spoke to the staff member
behind the counter who was seen working and this individual confirmed he was alone
in the store and was not a personal licence holder. Allowing a non-personal licence
holder to be the sole person responsible inside of the premises breaches a condition
on the licence which also undermines the prevention of crime and disorder licensing
objective. Personal licence holders are trained and knowledgeable about the licensing
laws and responsibilities. Their presence ensures that the premises are managed in
accordance with these laws, reducing the likelihood of criminal activities and disorderly
conduct. Further to this, in case of any incidents, personal licence holders are
equipped to handle situations effectively, whether it involves dealing with unruly

customers or liaising with law enforcement if required.

In relation to the prevention of crime and disorder, the licence holder has also failed in
gaining membership to a relevant crime prevention scheme. Although the TENBAC
scheme no longer exists, there are alternative scheme’s which have recently gained

traction in Tendring.

20
Page 46



APPENDIX A

Although being made aware of the condition on the licence, the licence holder has
taken no positive action in seeking to implement an alternative scheme to assist with

the prevention of crime and disorder.

Public Safety & The Prevention of Public Nuisance

It should also be noted that the reasons for review outlined above not only relate to
the prevention of crime and disorder but also relate to Public Safety and The
Prevention of Public Nuisance. Most specifically, because CCTV primarily acts as a
powerful deterrent against preventing public nuisance, such as vandalism, noise
disturbances, loitering, public intoxication and Anti-Social behaviour. As mentioned
above, CCTV allows for continuous monitoring of the premises which can help in
identifying suspicious behaviour and taking preventative measures before crime can
occur. CCTV is a vital tool in enhancing public safety, providing a sense of security,

and ensuring that any incidents are managed effectively.

In keeping with this, ensuring that two members of staff are also present in the
premises means that staff can support each other in challenging situations. For
example, if a medical emergency arises at the premises, then one member of staff can
focus on first aid (if trained) and the second member of staff could call the emergency
services. Having more than one member of staff also allows for enhanced monitoring
in instances of public nuisance, allowing staff members to better identify public

nuisance and provide a faster and more co-ordinated response in such instances.

21
Page 47



APPENDIX A

Outcome Sought

The purpose of the Licensing Act 2003 is to provide a clear and transparent framework
for making decisions about applications by individuals or businesses wishing to sell or
supply alcohol or provide certain types of regulated entertainment and late-night

refreshment.

There are four licensing objectives which lay as the foundation of the Licensing Act
2003, which need to be taken into account during the initial application process and
promoted by the licence holder throughout the duration of the licence. The licence
holder would have been aware of their responsibilities to uphold the licensing

objectives as they are clearly defined in the initial premises licence application.

The Licensing Authority asks that the premises licence is revoked. The Licensing
Authority feels that merely adding more conditions to the premises licence would be
wholly ineffective due to the number of breaches that continue to occur, despite the
extensive advice given to the licence holder. Further to this, although changes have
been made to adhere to conditions on the licence, since the first inspection in
September, the licence holder has shown a propensity to ignore advice by the
Licensing Authority. For example, the licence holder was advised on multiple
occasions since September 2024 they will need to complete a refusals log / incident
book, but this was not implemented until 26.10.2024 (Appendix J). Further to this, the
licence holder continues to allow only one member of staff to be present inside of the

premises, despite knowing that this is a breach of the licence conditions.

The licence holder has made the Licensing Authority aware that he cannot afford to
keep two members of staff in the store in accordance with their licence conditions.
Currently, the premises licence allows for the sale of alcohol 24 hours a day, every day
and this means, that two members of staff must be in the store during this time. If
revocation of the premises licence is not considered an appropriate outcome, then the
Licensing Authority requests that the time which alcohol can be sold from the premises

(off sales) is reduced from 24 hours per day.

22
Page 48



APPENDIX A

The Licensing Authority believes that by reducing the licensed hours, this will reduce
the financial constraints on the licence holder as two members of staff will be required
in the store on a less frequent basis. In keeping with this request, the Licensing
Authority also asks that the premises licence be suspended until a full inspection is
completed at the premises which shows that ALL current licence conditions are being
upheld.

23
Page 49



APPENDIX A

Appendix

Appendix A — Review Application

Appendix B — Current Licence

Appendix C — Photos taken 18.09.2024
Appendix D — Enforcement Letter 20.09.2024
Appendix E - Enforcement Letter 26.09.2024
Appendix F — Images of Alcohol 04.10.2024
Appendix G — Stored Alcohol 18.10.2024
Appendix H — Enforcement Letter 21.10.2024
Appendix | — Enforcement Letter 17.01.2025
Appendix J — Image of refusals log

Appendix K — Inspection document 18.09.2024
Appendix L — Inspection document 04.10.2024
Appendix M — Inspection document 18.10.2024
Appendix N — Inspection document 13.01.2025

24
Page 50



APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

Tendring District Council
Licensing Office, Town Hall, Station Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex, CO15 1SE
Tel: 01255 686565 Email: licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Acting on behalf of the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority
(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
139 Old Road

Post town Clacton on Sea Post code (if known) CO15 3AT

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Mr Suresh Theivendram

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
19/00055/PREMVA

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick v" yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

Page 51



APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

3) a member of the club to which this application relates ]
(please complete (A) below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick v yes

Mr ] Mrs  [] Miss [ ] Ms ] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 52



APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority
Tendring District Council

Town Hall

Station Road

Clacton On Sea

CO15 1SE

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)
licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety X
3) the prevention of public nuisance ]
4) the protection of children from harm ]

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

This premises was granted a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 by Tendring District
Council authorising the sale of alcohol off of the premises 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The
premises currently operates as a convenience store / off licence.

The premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor is Mr Suresh Theivendram; this
person is a personal licence holder, reference number TDX1149, issued by Tendring District
Council on 07.09.20009.

The Tendring District Council Licensing Enforcement Officer and Licensing Manager, alongside
Essex Police, have conducted numerous visits to 139 Old Road, Clacton On Sea, Essex, CO15
3AT since September 2024 where numerous breaches of the licensing conditions have been
identified on each occasion.

The licence holder / designated premises supervisor, Mr Suresh Theivendram, has been given
ample opportunity and time since the first inspection and has been made conscious of the repeated
breaches after each inspection has taken place. However, despite copious amounts of advice being
given on numerous occasions, they still continue to undermine two core licensing objectives: the
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.

Page 53



APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

139 Old Road (known to be trading as Clacton Local) is located at 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea,
Essex, CO15 3AT.

The premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor is Mr Suresh Theivendram; this
person is a personal licence holder, reference number TDX1149 issued by Tendring District
Council on 07.09.20009.

There has been four premises licence inspections between the dates of 18.09.2024 and 13.01.2025.

There have also been two meetings with Mr Suresh Theivendram. The first taking place on
26.09.2024 and the second meeting taking place on 08.10.2024.

Please note the timeline of events below:

First inspection — 18.09.2024 — condition breaches identified.

Annex 2 (1)
Annex 2 (4)
Annex 2A (6)
Annex 2A (8)
Annex 2A (11)
Annex 3 (13)

ook wn R

Incorrect premises licence also displayed in contravention of S.57 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Enforcement letter sent — 20.09.2024

First meeting with licence holder / DPS — 26.09.2024

- All breaches of conditions discussed.

Second Inspection — 04.10.2024 — condition breaches identified

Annex 2 (4)
Annex 2A (6)
Annex 2A (8)
Annex 2A (11)
Annex 3 (13)

agkrwbdE

Second meeting with licence holder / DPS — 08.10.2024

- Second inspection discussed; advice given regarding breaches.

Third Inspection — 18.10.2024 — condition breaches identified

1. Annex 2 (4)
2. Annex 2A (6)
3. Annex 2A (8)

Page 54



APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

4. Annex 2A (11)
5. Annex 3 (13)

Note: Super strength alcohol having ABV content above 6.5% or higher had been removed from
shelves but was still available as stacked at back of the store.

Enforcement letter sent — 21.10.2024

Fourth Inspection — 13.01.2025 — condition breaches identified.

Annex 2 (2)
Annex 2A (9)
Annex 2A (11)
Annex 3 (13)

PR

Enforcement letter sent — 17.01.2025

A full supplementary bundle will be provided within 28 days.

Premises licence attached.

Page 55



APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

Please tick v" yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the []
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Page 56



APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

Please tick v’
yes

I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,

as appropriate

I understand that if 1 do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature A.Suith

Capacity  Licensing Enforcement Officer

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

A Smith

Tendring District Council Licensing Authority

Town Hall

Station Road

Post town Post Code
Clacton on Sea CO15 1SE

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional) licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. A-responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

N

o &

Page 57




APPENDIX A

APPENDIX A
Schedule 12
Part A Regulation 33,34
Tendring District Council
Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number 19/00055/PREMVA

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code
139 Old Road
Clacton On Sea
Essex
CO15 3AT

Telephone number 01255 470002

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not Applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale of Alcohol off the premises

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Sale of Alcohol off the premises
Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

Non Standard Timings

Not Applicable

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Sale of Alcohol off the premises

Page 58



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX A

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence
Mr Suresh Theivendram
139 Old Road
Clacton on Sea
Essex
CO15 3AT

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Not Applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Suresh Theivendram

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Personal Licence Number TDX1149

Licensing Authority Tendring District Council

for and on behalf of the Licensing Authority

Paul Price
CORPORATE DIRECTOR
Dated: 2 April 2019

Page 59




APPENDIX A

APPENDIX A

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:-

(a) At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence, or

(b) At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Licence is suspended.

2 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds
a Personal Licence.

3 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification
policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

4 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(a);

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -

P=D + (D.V)

where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "valued added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994(a).

Page 60



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX A

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price
actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a
day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as
a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which
take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1
2

Notices shall be clearly displayed inside the premises indicating that a CCTV system is in operation.

The Licenceholder shall retain all video tapes/DVD discs for a period of 28 days and shall make them
available to the Police or an authorised Officer of the Council on demand.

The premises will operate a "Challenge 25" scheme, or equivalent, requiring those appearing to be 25
years or under to be asked for accredited identification as to their age.

In order to positively assist with the promotion of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the
Prevention of Public Nuisance Licensing objectives under the Licensing Act 2003, this premises
voluntarily supports the Tendring Community Safety Partnership Reducing the Strength scheme to not
sell Super Strength Beer, Lager and Cider defined as having an Alcohol By Volume (ABV) content of
between 6.5% and 12% at very low prices, e.g. for considerably less than its RRP or at a level which
may attract or encourage street drinking and alcohol related anti-social behaviour. This voluntary
agreement does not apply in respect of specialist or branded, premium priced products such as craft
ales, local or micro - brewery specialist products, boxed gifts or national celebratory/commemorative
Beer, Lager or Cider with an ABV content of 6.5% or greater.

Any conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule not specified above.

Annex 2A — Conditions as agreed with Essex Police

6

10

No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or Cider, having an Alcohol By Volume (ABV) content of
6.5% or higher, will be sold at any time.

A formal "Challenge 25" scheme shall be adopted, of which any persons who appears to be under the
age of 25 shall have to establish they are over the age of 18 years by an approved ID(Passport, Full
Driving Licence, or othe Photo ID, formally approved by Essex Trading Standards.

The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a Refusal/Incident book to record all refusals, or persons challenged
for ID relating to the sale of alcohol. This record will be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority for
inspection on request.

CCTV of a type approved by the Local Authority to be installed, which covers all parts of the shop to
which the public have access and to include the are immediately outside the premises entrance.The
images to be retained for 28 days minimum, and made available on reasonable demand to the Police
and Local Authority. The lighting of the premises will be such that the CCTV operates at the best
possible level.

The DPS/Licence Holder will take all resonable steps to prevent youths gathering outside the immediate
front of the premises.

Page 61



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX A
11 The premises operators shall join TENBAC and retain membership during the life of the Premises
Licence.
Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
12 A Personal Licence holder shall be on duty and in the retail part of the shop premises at all times the

premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol.

13 At least two members of staff must be present in the shop at all times the premises are open to the
public for the sale of alcohol.

Annex 4 — Plans

Plans are attached to this Licence

Page 62



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B
Schedule 12
Part A Regulation 33,34
Tendring District Council
Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number 19/00055/PREMVA

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code
139 Old Road
Clacton On Sea
Essex
CO15 3AT

Telephone number 01255 470002

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not Applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Sale of Alcohol off the premises

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Sale of Alcohol off the premises
Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

Non Standard Timings

Not Applicable

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Sale of Alcohol off the premises

Page 63



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence
Mr Suresh Theivendram
139 Old Road
Clacton on Sea
Essex
CO15 3AT

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Not Applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Suresh Theivendram

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Personal Licence Number TDX1149

Licensing Authority Tendring District Council

for and on behalf of the Licensing Authority

Paul Price
CORPORATE DIRECTOR
Dated: 2 April 2019

Page 64




APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:-

(a) At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence, or

(b) At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Licence is suspended.

2 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds
a Personal Licence.

3 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification
policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

4 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(a);

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -

P=D + (D.V)

where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) "valued added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994(a).

Page 65



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price
actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a
day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as
a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which
take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1
2

Notices shall be clearly displayed inside the premises indicating that a CCTV system is in operation.

The Licenceholder shall retain all video tapes/DVD discs for a period of 28 days and shall make them
available to the Police or an authorised Officer of the Council on demand.

The premises will operate a "Challenge 25" scheme, or equivalent, requiring those appearing to be 25
years or under to be asked for accredited identification as to their age.

In order to positively assist with the promotion of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the
Prevention of Public Nuisance Licensing objectives under the Licensing Act 2003, this premises
voluntarily supports the Tendring Community Safety Partnership Reducing the Strength scheme to not
sell Super Strength Beer, Lager and Cider defined as having an Alcohol By Volume (ABV) content of
between 6.5% and 12% at very low prices, e.g. for considerably less than its RRP or at a level which
may attract or encourage street drinking and alcohol related anti-social behaviour. This voluntary
agreement does not apply in respect of specialist or branded, premium priced products such as craft
ales, local or micro - brewery specialist products, boxed gifts or national celebratory/commemorative
Beer, Lager or Cider with an ABV content of 6.5% or greater.

Any conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule not specified above.

Annex 2A — Conditions as agreed with Essex Police

6

10

No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or Cider, having an Alcohol By Volume (ABV) content of
6.5% or higher, will be sold at any time.

A formal "Challenge 25" scheme shall be adopted, of which any persons who appears to be under the
age of 25 shall have to establish they are over the age of 18 years by an approved ID(Passport, Full
Driving Licence, or othe Photo ID, formally approved by Essex Trading Standards.

The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a Refusal/Incident book to record all refusals, or persons challenged
for ID relating to the sale of alcohol. This record will be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority for
inspection on request.

CCTV of a type approved by the Local Authority to be installed, which covers all parts of the shop to
which the public have access and to include the are immediately outside the premises entrance.The
images to be retained for 28 days minimum, and made available on reasonable demand to the Police
and Local Authority. The lighting of the premises will be such that the CCTV operates at the best
possible level.

The DPS/Licence Holder will take all resonable steps to prevent youths gathering outside the immediate
front of the premises.

Page 66



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B
11 The premises operators shall join TENBAC and retain membership during the life of the Premises
Licence.
Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
12 A Personal Licence holder shall be on duty and in the retail part of the shop premises at all times the

premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol.

13 At least two members of staff must be present in the shop at all times the premises are open to the
public for the sale of alcohol.

Annex 4 — Plans

Plans are attached to this Licence

Page 67



APPENDIX A APPENDIX C

Page 68



APPENDIX A APPENDIX C

Page 69



APPENDIX A APPENDIX C

Page 70



APPENDIX A APPENDIX C

Page 71



APPENDIX A APPENDIX C

Page 72



APPENDIX A APPENDIX D

Mr Suresh Theivendram Licensing Section
139 Old Road Town Hall
Clacton On Sea Station Road
Essex Clacton on Sea
CO15 3AT Essex CO15 1SE

Tel: (01255) 686565

Email: licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk
Please ask for: Alfie Smith

Our reference : 19/00055/PREMVA

Friday 20th September 2024
Dear Suresh,

LICENSING ACT 2003 — BREACH OF LICENCE CONDITIONS
139 OLD RoAD, CLACTON ON SEA, ESSEX, CO15 3AT.

| conducted an inspection at 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex, CO15 3AT on Wednesday 18"
September 2024. During my inspection several breaches of your premises licence were identified:

1) Theincorrect premises licence was displayed in the store.

S.57 (2) The holder of the premises licence must secure that the licence or a certified copy of it are
kept at the premises in the custody or under the control of—

(a)the holder of the licence, or

(b)a person who works at the premises and whom the holder of the licence has nominated in
writing for the purposes of this subsection.

S.57 (3) The holder of the premises licence must secure that—
(a)the summary of the licence or a certified copy of that summary
are prominently displayed at the premises.

As you are displaying the incorrect premises licence, this is a direct breach of Section 57 of the
Licensing Act 20024.

2) There are no notices in the premises clearly displaying that CCTV is in operation.
Annex 2 (1) states that “Notices shall be clearly displayed inside the premises indicating that a

CCTV system is in operation”.

3) The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a Refusal/lIncident book to record all refusals, or
persons challenged for ID relating to the sale of alcohol. This record will be
produced to the Police or Licensing Authority for inspection on request.

Website: Switchmge 73 Customer self-service portal:
6

www.tendringdc.gov.uk 012556 tendring-self.achieveservice.com



During the inspection | asked the staff ARIIEND 20U see the refusals/incAEH EdNOAXd Dwvas
informed that one is not kept. As a refusals/incident book is not being kept. This is a direct breach
of your licence conditions.

4) At least two members of staff must be present in the shop at all times the premises
are open to the public for the sale of alcohol.

During the inspection it was identified that only one member of staff was working at the premises.

5) No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or Cider, having an Alcohol By
Volume (ABV) content of 6.5% or higher, will be sold at any time.

During the inspection, it was identified that several different brands of high strength larger or cider,
above the ABV of 6.5% were being sold at the premises.

6) The premises operators shall join TENBAC and retain membership during the life of
the premises licence.

TENBAC (Tendring Business Against Crime) was a programme which included a radio service for
stores so that they could communicate with each other in order to prevent and deter crime in the
local area. Although TENBAC no longer exists, we would expect measure to have been put in
place to replace the system, which there was no evidence of at the time of the inspection.

Following the inspection, we spoke on the phone regarding the inspection, and | would like
to confirm your appointment to attend Clacton Town Hall, Station Rd, Clacton-on-Sea CO15
1SE on Thursday 26/09/2024 at 1pm for a meeting regarding the licence conditions.

If you have any question regarding the above, please contact the Licensing section on
01255686565 where a member of the team can assist.

Yours sincerely

A.Smith

Alfie Smith
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

Page 74



APPENDIX A APPENDIX E

Mr Suresh Theivendram Licensing Section
139 Old Road Town Hall
Clacton On Sea Station Road
Essex Clacton on Sea

CO15 3AT Essex CO15 1SE

Tel: (01255) 686565

Email: licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk
Please ask for: Alfie Smith

Our reference : 19/00055/PREMVA

Thursday 26th September 2024.

Dear Suresh,

LICENSING ACT 2003 — BREACH OF LICENCE CONDITIONS
139 OLD RoAD, CLACTON ON SEA, ESSEX, CO15 3AT.

Thank you for attending the meeting at Clacton Town Hall today. As discussed, there are a number
of matter things at the premises which require immediate change.

1)

www.tendringdc.gov.uk 012556

The correct premises licence needs to be displayed in store. If you cannot find your copy of
the premises licence, then please call the licensing team on the number provided on this
letter and you can order another for a fee of £10.50 and this will be sent to you.

You need to display notices in the premises which clearly state that CCTV is in operation.
These can be purchased online.

At least two members of staff should be present in the shop at all times that the premises is
open to the public for the sale of alcohol. | appreciate that during our meeting you stated
that this has been breached due to financial issues meaning that you cannot have two
members of staff in the store. However, if this is the case, you may apply for a minor
variation to the premises licence and state that you wish to have this condition removed. |
have enclosed the application for a minor variation with this letter for you to take a look at if
you wish to do so. However, until the variation takes effect, you must ensure that two
members of staff are in the shop at all times as per the licence conditions.

No single cans of Super Strength Beer, Larger or Cider, having an Alcohol by Volume
content of 6.5% or higher, will be sold at any time. As discussed in the meeting, any alcohol
with an ABV of 6.5 or higher will need to be removed from the premises with immediate
effect.

| have noticed that you have a condition on your licence for TENBAC, however, | also
appreciate that TENBAC no longer exist. During the meeting you discussed that there is a
panic button behind the till, which will alert the police in the case of an emergency. If you do
apply for a minor variation, then it may also be worth considering applying to have this
condition removed also.

Website: Switch 9 e’/5 Customer self-service portal:
6 tendring-self.achieveservice.com



Please ensure that these changes aARIBINEEX iy Thursday 3 Octolbdr RENMIRela
further inspection is completed in the future and these issues have not been rectified, then
we will strongly consider areview of your premises licence.

If you have any question regarding the above, please contact the Licensing section on
01255686565 where a member of the team can assist.

Yours sincerely

A.Swith

Alfie Smith
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

Page 76



APPENDIX A APPENDIX F

Page 77



APPENDIX A APPENDIX F

Page 78



APPENDIX A APPENDIX F

Page 79



APPENDIX A APPENDIX F

Page 80



APPENDIX A APPENDIX G

Page 81



APPENDIX A APPENDIX G

Page 82



APPENDIX A APPENDIX H

Mr Suresh Theivendram Licensing Section
139 Old Road Town Hall
Clacton On Sea Station Road
Essex Clacton on Sea
CO15 3AT Essex CO15 1SE

Tel: (01255) 686565

Email: licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk
Please ask for: Alfie Smith

Our reference : 19/00055/PREMVA

Monday 21st October 2024

Dear Suresh,

LICENSING ACT 2003 — BREACH OF LICENCE CONDITIONS
139 OLD RoAD, CLACTON ON SEA, ESSEX, CO15 3AT.

An inspection was completed at the above address on Friday 18" October 2024.

1)

www.tendringdc.gov.uk 012556

You have previously been advised that you need to display the correct premises licence in
the store. During the inspection in 18.10.2024, it was noted that you are correctly displaying
the premises licence.

You have previously been advised that you need to display notices in the premises which
clearly state that CCTV is in operation. During the inspection on 18.10.2024, it was noted that
the correct signage is now displayed in the store.

You have previously been advised that it is a condition on your licence that at least two
members of staff should be present in the shop at all times that the premises is open to the
public for the sale of alcohol. During the inspection, there was only one member of staff in the
store for the 40 minutes whilst we were in attendance, but an additional staff member arrived
at the very end of the inspection. | will mind you that annexe 3 (13) of your premises licence
states that states that:

At least two members of staff must be present in the shop at all times the premises are open to
the public for the sale of alcohol.

You have previously been advised that no single cans of Super Strength beer, larger or cider,
having an Alcohol by Volume content of 6.5% or higher, can be sold at any time. During the
inspection on 18.10.2024 it was noted that all of the alcohol with an ABV of 6.5% or higher
has been removed from the shelves. However, we did notice that the alcohol which has been
removed from the shelves is now stored at the back of the premises on full display to
customers. This will need to be removed from the premises as soon as possible and
should not be left in the view of customers, or where it could reasonably perceived as
“displayed” to customers.

During an inspection on 04.10.2024 we noted that there was no refusals log or incident book

being used at the premises which is a breach of Annexe 2A (8)

Website: Switch Qe 83 Customer self-service portal:
6 tendring-self.achieveservice.com



APPENDIX A APPENDIX H
'The Licence Holder/DPS will keep a Refusal/Incident book to record all refusals, or persons challenged for
ID relating to the sale of alcohol. This record will be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority for
inspection on request.”

During the inspection on 18.10.2024 it was identified that no efforts have been made to introduce
or keep a refusals log or incident book, which demonstrates another beach of this condition. The
member of staff in the shop at the time showed the till prompt, but explained that there are no
details of the refusal logged or kept at any time. We have now provided you with a refusals log
which we will be checking is kept up to date. Furthe to this, it is your responsibility to keep an
incident book and we will be requesting this in our next inspection.

If you have any question regarding the above, please contact the Licensing section on
01255686565 where a member of the team can assist.

Yours sincerely

A.Smith

Alfie Smith
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

Page 84



APPENDIX A APPENDIX |

Mr Suresh Theivendram Licensing Section
139 Old Road Town Hall
Clacton On Sea Station Road
Essex Clacton on Sea
CO15 3AT Essex CO15 1SE

Tel: (01255) 686565

Email: licensingsection@tendringdc.gov.uk
Please ask for: Alfie Smith

Our reference : 19/00055/PREMVA

Friday 17th January 2025
Dear Mr Suresh Theivendram,

LICENSING ACT 2003 — BREACH OF LICENCE CONDITION
139 OLD RoAD, CLACTON ON SEA, ESSEX, CO15 3AT.

An inspection was carried out at the above address on 13.01.2025 where it was identified that you
are in breach of 2 of your licensing conditions.

Annex 2 (2) of your licence states: “The Licence holder shall retain all video tapes/DVD discs for a
period of 28 days and shall make them available to the Police or an authorised Officer of the
Council on demand”. During the inspection, | asked to see your CCTV footage and | was informed
that the CCTV system has not been working since October 2024. | was further informed that it was
discovered that the CCTV system was not working when Essex Police requested a copy following
an incident which took place. When asked about the plans to repair the system, | was also
informed that you are waiting for the insurance money from a criminal incident which took place at
the incident to repair the CCTV system. CCTV is paramount for the prevention of crime and
disorder. It helps deter criminals and assists in identifying and prosecuting offenders, which aligns
with the licensing objective: prevention of crime and disorder. Following this letter, you are required
to fix your CCTV before Monday 27" January 2025.

Annex 3 (13) of your licence states: “At least two members of staff must be present in the shop at
all times the premises are open to the public for the sale of alcohol”. During the inspection and
whilst myself and my colleague were present in the shop, we were informed that the second
member of staff due in today had called in sick. Your licence condition very clearly states that two
members of staff must be on duty whilst the premises are open for the sale of alcohol and
throughout our inspection, there was only one member of staff present in the store, and this
constitutes a breach of your licence condition. In the past months, you have reported several
incidents of crime to Essex Police. The condition that requires two members of staff to be present
in the premises is paramount in keeping staff members safe and secure and also can assist with
emergency situations should they arise.

It has further been identified that although you do have signage present inside of the premises
indicating that CCTV is in operating, The signage is difficult to identify in its current position and |
would advise that this should be moved to a position closer to the entrance, so customers can see
it upon entering the store.

Website: Switch Qe 85 Customer self-service portal:
www.tendringdc.gov.uk 01255 686 tendring-self.achieveservice.com



APPENDIX A APPENDIX |
The licensing team have conducted several inspections at 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex,
between 18/09/2024 and 13/01/2025 and on each occasion numerous breaches of the licence
conditions have been identified. The consistent breaches of your licence conditions demonstrate a
failure to uphold the four licensing conditions:

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

Prevention of public nuisance
Protection of children from harm

bR

As aresult of your continuous non-compliance and failure to support the licensing
objectives, we are seeking to review your premises licence.

If you have any question regarding the above, please contact the Licensing section on
01255686565 where a member of the team can assist.

Yours sincerely

A.Swith

Alfie Smith
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

Page 86



APPENDIX A APPENDIX J

Page 87



APPENDIX A APPENDIX K

Premises Inspection (OFF Sales)

Complete
Flagged items 1 Actions 0
Date & Time of Inspection 18.09.2024 13:58 BST
Officer
Premises Name Clacton Local

139 Old Rd, Clacton-on-Sea CO15
Premises Address 3AU, UK
(51.7949043, 1.147924)

Premises Licence Displayed Yes
Premises Licence Number 15/00046/PREMVA
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) Suresh Theivendram

Is the DPS Available?

I
(e]

Spoken to over the phone and contact number - need meeting

Person in charge at time of visit Kilimoly Tharmathas

Are they a Personal Licence holder? Yes

Photo 1

1/6

Page 88



APPENDIX A

Is CCTV available?

CCTV back up duration

Are staff trained in the use of CCTV?
How many staff are employed?

Are right to work checks being completed?

Notnkeptnomly two members of staff

In the absence of DPS - Is an authorisation to staff
documented?

Are staff trained in alcohol / age offences?
In charge for 3 months, worked here 12 years.
In store training. Very little training.

No online training.

What age policy challenge is in place?

Photo 2

Are relevant posters displayed regarding age policy?
Is a sales refusal / incident book available?

Additional Information
Incorrect prem licence on display.
Breaches of conditions

1. No CCTV notices

2. Alcohol on sale above 6.5%
3. No refusal log

Page 89

APPENDIX K

Yes
30 days
Only DPS

3including DPS

No

No

Challenge 25

2/

[e))



APPENDIX A APPENDIX K

4. One member of staff present in the shop

3/6

Page 90



APPENDIX A APPENDIX K

Disclaimer

The assessors believe the information contained within this risk assessment report to be correct at the time
of printing. The assessors do not accept responsibility for any consequences arising from the use of the
information herein. The report is based on matters which were observed or came to the attention of the
assessors during the day of the assessment and should not be relied upon as an exhaustive record of all
possible risks or hazards that may exist or potential improvements that can be made.

4/6

Page 91



APPENDIX A APPENDIX K

Flagged items 1 flagged

Title Page
Are right to work checks being completed?

Notnkeptnomly two members of staff

5/6

Page 92



APPENDIX A APPENDIX K

Media summary

Photo 1 Photo 2

6/6

Page 93



APPENDIX A

Premises Inspection (OFF Sales)

Flagged items 1 Actions
Date & Time of Inspection

Officer

Premises Name

Premises Address

Premises Licence Displayed

Premises Licence Number

Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)
Is the DPS Available?

Person in charge at time of visit

Are they a Personal Licence holder?
Is CCTV available?

CCTV back up duration

Are staff trained in the use of CCTV?
How many staff are employed?

Are right to work checks being completed?

Only two members of staff. Family. No new hires.

In the absence of DPS - Is an authorisation to staff
documented?

Are staff trained in alcohol / age offences?

What age policy challenge is in place?

Page 94

APPENDIX L

Complete

04.10.2024 11:25 BST

Alfie Smith

Clacton Local

139 Old Road, Clacton, Essex

Yes

19/00055/PREMVA

Suresh Theivendram

N

I

Kilimoly Tharmathas

Yes

Yes

30 days

Only DPS

3including DPS (currently in the
process of hiring more)

pd

Challenge 25

<
=z

-
~
Ul



APPENDIX A APPENDIX L

Are relevant posters displayed regarding age policy? Yes

Is a sales refusal / incident book available?

Additional Information

Poor inspection - letter sent surround improvement which need to be made on 20th September and 26th
September 2024.

1. Correct premises licence now displayed.
2. Clear notice showing that CCTV is displayed.

3. Still no refusal/incident book. Staff did show till which does show prompt for age check but no refusals or
incident records kept as per conditions.

4. Only one member of staff came present in the store when myself and S Bennett It arrived for inspection.

5. Singular cans of high ABV alcohol from last visit but REPLACED with different brands with a percent of
both 7.5 and 9 percent. Images attached.

6. Not a condition but still no DPS authorisation document as per advised in last visit.

Photo 1 Photo 2

Photo 3

2/5

Page 95



APPENDIX A APPENDIX L

Disclaimer

The assessors believe the information contained within this risk assessment report to be correct at the time
of printing. The assessors do not accept responsibility for any consequences arising from the use of the
information herein. The report is based on matters which were observed or came to the attention of the
assessors during the day of the assessment and should not be relied upon as an exhaustive record of all
possible risks or hazards that may exist or potential improvements that can be made.

3/5

Page 96



APPENDIX A APPENDIX L

Flagged items 1 flagged

Title Page
Are right to work checks being completed?

Only two members of staff. Family. No new hires.

4/5

Page 97



APPENDIX A APPENDIX L

Media summary

Photo 1 Photo 2

Photo 3

5/5

Page 98



APPENDIX A APPENDIX M

Premises Inspection (OFF Sales)

Complete
Flagged items 1 Actions 0
Date & Time of Inspection 18.10.2024 11:40 BST
Officer
Premises Name Clacton Local
Premises Address 139 Old Road, CIaCtOQ(%r;SE;Tf
Premises Licence Displayed Yes
Premises Licence Number 19/00055/PREMVA
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) Suresh Theivendram
Is the DPS Available?
Person in charge at time of visit Kilimoly Tharmathas
Are they a Personal Licence holder? Yes
Is CCTV available? Yes
CCTV back up duration 30 days
Are staff trained in the use of CCTV? No only DPS

How many staff are employed?
Are right to work checks being completed? No

In the absence of DPS - Is an authorisation to staff N
documented?

(0]

3

Are staff trained in alcohol / age offences?

In store

1/

N

Page 99



APPENDIX A APPENDIX M

What age policy challenge is in place? Challenge 25
Are relevant posters displayed regarding age policy?

Is a sales refusal / incident book available?

=<
Z

Breach of condition - staff member told about thisnin the past and still not action taken

Additional Information

All 6.5 percent as above alcohol removed from shelves but stored in back hallway which is on view to
customers so could be considered for sale. Words of advice given to remove this.

No refusal / incident log

Only one member of staff in the shop on arrival, second staff member turned up after around 30 or 40
minutes.

Premises do want to change DPS and insist that they have submitted paperwork. M Cook checked with with
E King during inspection and it was confirmed that no paperwork has been submitted.

2/4

Page 100



APPENDIX A APPENDIX M

Disclaimer

The assessors believe the information contained within this risk assessment report to be correct at the time
of printing. The assessors do not accept responsibility for any consequences arising from the use of the
information herein. The report is based on matters which were observed or came to the attention of the
assessors during the day of the assessment and should not be relied upon as an exhaustive record of all
possible risks or hazards that may exist or potential improvements that can be made.

Page 101

3/4



APPENDIX A APPENDIX M

Flagged items 1 flagged

Title Page

Are right to work checks being completed?

4/4

Page 102



APPENDIX A

Premises Inspection (OFF Sales)

Flagged items 0 Actions
Date & Time of Inspection

Officer

Alfie Smith

Premises Name

Premises Address

Premises Licence Displayed

Premises Licence Number

Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)
Is the DPS Available?

Person in charge at time of visit

Are they a Personal Licence holder?

TDC granted.

Is CCTV available?

APPENDIX N

Complete

13.01.2025 15:01 GMT

Michael Cook

139 Old Road

139 OLD ROAD, CLACTON

Yes

19/00055/PREMVA

Mr Suresh Theivendram

\[e}

Kilimoly tharmathas

Yes

\[e}

Due to robbery in November police ide tidied that CCTV not working, waiting for insurance claim from

robbery to get CCTV up and running.
How many staff are employed?
Are right to work checks being completed?

Where are records of the right to work checks kept?

With accountant, would call accountant if needed.

In the absence of DPS - Is an authorisation to staff
documented?

Page 103

Yes

\[e}

1/4



APPENDIX A APPENDIX N

Are staff trained in alcohol / age offences?

=S
Under 18 training.

Challenge 25 policy.

1 week monitoring new staff.

What age policy challenge is in place? Challenge 25

Are relevant posters displayed regarding age policy? Yes

Photo 1

Is a sales refusal / incident book available? Yes

Photo 2

Additional Information
No CCTV for since October.

No second member of staff.

2/4

Page 104



APPENDIX A APPENDIX N

Disclaimer

The assessors believe the information contained within this risk assessment report to be correct at the time
of printing. The assessors do not accept responsibility for any consequences arising from the use of the
information herein. The report is based on matters which were observed or came to the attention of the
assessors during the day of the assessment and should not be relied upon as an exhaustive record of all
possible risks or hazards that may exist or potential improvements that can be made.

Page 105

3/4



APPENDIX A APPENDIX N

Media summary

Photo 1 Photo 2

4/4

Page 106



Licensing Team
Police Station
Beatrice Road
Clacton. Essex
CO15 1ET

Dear Sir/Madam

APPENDIX B

Protecting and serving Essex

20/02/2025
19/00055/PREMVA

| wish to make representations in support of the licensing review by Tendring District
Council of the premises at 139 Old Road, Clacton.

Together with the local authority, the property has been visited on a number of
occasions and on every visit, the premises has been in breach of licensing conditions.

There has been several incidents of violence, theft and disorder over recent months. All

occurring after 11pm. The licensee has failed to support the licensing objectives of the

prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.

For the reasons above, Essex Police fully support this application.

In accordance with paragraph 11.9 of the Statutory Guidance Essex Police may amplify
its representation at the subsequent hearing. Essex Police may also produce further

documentary or other information in support of this application ahead of the hearing

and would ask the authority to take this into account as it may do under Regulation 18 of
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

Yours sincerely
Steven Bennett

Tendring Licensing Officer.

Essex Police Licensing Unit, Blyths Meadow Braintree, Essex CM7 3DJ

Licensing.applications@essex.police.uk 01245 452035

In an emergency always di i& Fir n-emergencies dial 101
P e 107

a

WWW.ESS ice.uk


mailto:Licensing.applications@essex.police.uk

APPENDIX B

Immigration representation in support of an application for
the review of a premises licence

On behalf of the Secretary of State, Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) makes
representations in support of the following application for the review of a premises licence, relating
to the prevention of crime and disorder objective, including the prevention of illegal working and
immigration crime in licensed premises.

IE wishes to make representations on an application for a review of a premises licence.

Details of Premises:
Premises Licence Holder:

Mr Suresh Theivendram
Name and Address of Premises:

Clacton Local, 139 Old Road, Clacton On Sea
Post Town: Essex Post Code: CO15 3AT

Representations are being made for the following reasons:

The Licensing Act 2003 outlines four objectives that are to be upheld, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) is concerned regarding the prevention of crime and disorder.

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) considers that Mr Suresh Theivendram is not taking
suitable measures to prevent crime and disorder. The business has employed an illegal worker
which is prohibited under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Immigration Act 1971 (as amended).

Employing illegal workers in the UK has the following impact on the community and society as a
whole: -
It deprives HMRC and the Government of revenue by non-payment of tax and national
insurance.
It exploits the undocumented by paying them less than the minimum wage and provides
no employment or income protection.
It encourages those without permission to work to seek similar employment.
It allows a business to unfairly undercut other businesses by employing cheap labor.
lllegal workers are often housed in cramped and unsatisfactory conditions by the
employer as part of their working arrangement.

Immigration Enforcement supports the Local Authority in bringing this review application for the
above premises.

Page 108



APPENDIX B

On 28 February 2025, immigration officers from the East of England ICE Team in collaboration
with Trading Standards and Essex Council conducted an enforcement visit to Clacton Local, 139
Old Road, Clacton On Sea, CO15 3AT after intelligence was received the premises was employing
illegal workers. Entry was gained under section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003. Immigration officers
encountered the following illegal worker:

MANIVEL - 1979 — India

As immigration officers gained entry at the premises, MANIVEL was seen stacking shelves when
encountered by officers.

Home Office checks revealed MANIVEL entered the UK on a skilled worker migrant visa valid from
December 2023 to January 2027. This visa was sponsored by JAGASAALU UK LIMITED and
strictly restricted work to the job role of store manager within JAGASAALU UK LIMITED.
MANIVEL'’s ability to work is connected to the sponsor.

Immigration officers contacted the sponsor JAGASAALU UK LIMITED, by phone and ascertained
that MANIVEL had been dismissed in January 2025. The sponsor stated they had notified the
Home Office they were revoking sponsorship. Therefore, MANIVEL was working in breach of his
skilled worker visa.

An illegal working interview was conducted with MANIVEL. During the interview MANIVEL openly
admitted to having been employed at the premises for two weeks, working four days a week, with
his job role being stocking shelves. MANIVEL commented that ‘Suresh THEIVENDRAM’ had been
responsible for his employment. MANIVEL claimed to still be employed at his sponsored
workplace, however immigration officers had contrary information.

When questioned regarding pre-employment checks, MANIVEL claimed the employer had been
aware he had no eligibility to work outside of his sponsored role. In regard to remuneration,
MANIVEL stated he was not being paid and was hoping to be offered a permanent role at the
premises.

It is clear to see there has been a disregard to licensing conditions (as evidenced by the licensing
team) and mandatory checks which are legally required to be carried out by all employers. Serious
concerns must be raised as pre-employment checks which are outlined on the GOV.UK website
were not carried out.

A Civil Penalty Referral Notice was served to Clacton Local 24X7 Limited, and this is currently
being considered by the Civil Penalties Compliance Team.

RIGHT TO WORK CHECKS AND THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

The objective of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) is to provide a clear, transparent framework for
making decisions about applications by individuals or businesses wishing to sell or supply alcohol
or provide certain types of regulated entertainment and late-night refreshment.

There are four licensing objectives which underpin the Act, and which need to be taken into
account and promoted throughout the licensing process.

The licensing objectives are:

» the prevention of crime and disorder

* public safety

» the prevention of public nuisance and

» the protection of children from harm Page 109




APPENDIX B

Suresh THEIVENDRAM has been found employing an illegal worker. This business has failed to
meet the prevention of crime and disorder objective. The license holder would have been aware
of their responsibilities to uphold the licensing objectives as they are clearly defined as part of the
premises license application. It is an offence to work when a person is disqualified to do so, and
such an offence can only be committed with the co-operation of a premises license holder or its
agents.

The employer could have protected themselves and prevented crime and disorder by completing
a straightforward right to work check. Should the license holder have conducted the relevant right
to work checks, the worker would have failed at the first stage. This would have quickly and easily
confirmed that they had no right to work, and the license holder could have protected themselves
from employing illegal workers. All employers are dutybound by law to conduct these checks if
they wish to avoid being penalised if found to have employed someone who is prohibited from
working, and guidance can be found on the GOV.UK website or by using a search engine.
Additional information on how to conduct these checks is available online, this includes the Home
Office’s official YouTube page.

The use of illegal labour provides an unfair competitive edge and deprives the UK economy of tax
revenue. lllegal workers are often paid below the minimum wage (itself an offence) and National
Insurance payments are not paid. A key draw for illegal immigration is work and low-skilled
migrants that are increasingly vulnerable to exploitation by unlawful enterprises, finding
themselves in sub-standard accommodation and toiling in poor working conditions for long hours.

Whether by negligence or willful blindness illegal workers were engaged in activity on the
premises. Section 182 guidance of the Licensing Act 2003 at point 11.27 states that certain activity
should be treated particularly seriously, and this includes employing someone who is disqualified
from that work by reason of their immigration status in the UK. 11.28 of the guidance states that it
is expected that revocation of the license — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Name and Address:

Immigration Enforcement
Immigration Enforcement Licensing Compliance Team
6th Floor, 2 Ruskin Square

Dingwall Road

Croydon

CRO 2WF
Email address IE.licensing.reviews@homeoffice.gov.uk
(optional):

Signatures
Signature of Responsible Authority
Home Office Immigration Enforcement

Date: 04/03/2025 Capacity: Responsible
Authority

Page 110



APPENDIX B

A= .

“== Essex County Council Trading Standards
County Hall (CG32)
Market Road

CHELMSFORD
CM1 1QH
Licensing Section
Tendring District Council
Town Hall
Station Road . Our Ref: lig/MAU052266
Clacton on Sea Date: 12 February 2025
Essex Telephone: 03330 134136
CO15 1SE
Dear Sirs,

Clacton Local 24x7 Ltd. — 139, Old Road, Clacton-on-Sea, Essex CO15 3AT
The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015

The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016

The Tobacco Products (Traceability and Security Features) Regulations 2019

Essex Trading Standards would support a licence review of the above premises following a seizure of
30 packets of illicit tobacco from the premises on 3 December 2024. This matter has been referred to
HMRC for sanctions. This is a category A breach, which for a 1% contravention is liable to a penalty of
£2500.

Mr Suresh Theivendram, the licence holder, was present at the time and said the 10 packs found
behind the till were his personal cigarettes and not for sale. However, a further 20 packs were found
at the rear of the shop. A test purchase of the same brand of illicit cigarettes had been made prior to
the visit on 27 November 2024.

A previous test purchase of an alleged illicit vape was made on 20 October 2023 by a representative of
the industry. The product purchased was an ENE ELUX LEGEND Blueberry Pomegranate, 3500 puffs
vape for £12.99. Due to the legal constraints put on the tank size of vapes it is not possible to obtain
more than 1000 puffs from a legal vape. Photographic evidence shows the seller was Mr Suresh
Theivendram. During the Trading Standards’ visit on the 3 December 2024 high capacity vapes (over
1000 puffs) were found and the owner advised to remove them for sale.

Reliable information received in the middle of January 2025 suggests a man in the premises was in
possession of illicit cigarettes.

Page 111



APPENDIX B

This information is only for the purposes of the licence review and should not be used for any other
purpose.

Yours faithfully,

L &wg/){

Lindsay Gaskin
Department name (Body Text)

033301 34136

07900 164881
lindsay.gaskin@essex.gov.uk
WWW.essex.gov.uk

smz A

Page 112


mailto:lindsay.gaskin@essex.gov.uk
http://www.essex.gov.uk/

APPENDIX B

A= .

“== Essex County Council Trading Standards
County Hall (CG32)
Market Road

CHELMSFORD
CM1 1QH
Licensing Section
Tendring District Council
Town Hall
Station Road . Our Ref: lig/MAU052266
Clacton on Sea Date: 03 March 2025
Essex Telephone: 03330 134136
CO15 1SE
Dear Sirs,

Clacton Local 24x7 Ltd. — 139, Old Road, Clacton-on-Sea, Essex CO15 3AT
The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016

Further to my previous submission on 12 February 2025, | would like to add the following.

On 28 February 2025 | attended the above premises with Immigration Compliance & Enforcement
officers and colleagues from Essex County Council Trading Standards.

Kilimoly THARMATHAS, the director of Clacton Local 24x7 Ltd, was present, together with another
person, who was arrested for not having permission to work in the UK.

Ms THAMATHAS was behind the counter at the time of entry and directly behind her were displayed
high-capacity disposable vapes.

Under the above legislation, disposable or refillable vapes are allowed a maximum tank volume of 2ml
(this will give no more than 1000 puffs, but typically 650 puffs). The vapes on display ranged up to
20,000 puffs (20 to 30 times the legal permitted amount). Selling vapes that exceed the 2ml limit is a
criminal offence.

Ms THARMATHAS had been previously advised to remove the high-capacity vapes from sale during
our visit on 3 December 2024. Further high-capacity vapes were found under the counter, and one
was found in a display case on top of the counter, with legal vapes. Ms THARMATHAS stated that the

ones under the counter were from the previous visit and the ones on the shelf were new.

In total, 139 high-capacity vapes were seized, with an estimated retail value of £1347.

Page 113



APPENDIX B

Mr Suresh THEIVENDRAM was not present at the time of entry but arrived about 20 minutes later. He
argued that the other person in the shop, who had been arrested, was not working just helping out.
Mr THEIVENDRAM made no representations about the high-capacity vapes.

This information is only for the purposes of the licence review and should not be used for any other
purpose.

Yours faithfully,

L 54@5/2(

Lindsay Gaskin
Specialist Trading Standards Officer

033301 34136

07900 164881
lindsay.gaskin@essex.gov.uk
WWW.essex.gov.uk

smz A

Page 114


mailto:lindsay.gaskin@essex.gov.uk
http://www.essex.gov.uk/

APPENDIX C

. o * :
Review of Premises Licence |dox

One company: Infinite possibilities

139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, Essex CO15 3AT

/ﬁ\ ) 4 Green Lodge / /
|,
o Youth Centre
[ ]
S

oro

Health Centre

O>»0X

Club

56

(o]
2
St John-

Ch@h s
e L] ]

[ ]

[ ]
Rty

Fo = L

ST ANDREWS ROAD

Key C¢urt
~J

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Organisation Tendring District Council
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012.

Licensing Department
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to Department 9 P

prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Ref 25/00046/PREREV

Date 27 January 2025

SLA Number |100018684
Page115



eking
Text Box
ST ANDREWS ROAD


eking_1
Text Box
O
L
D

R
O
A
D


eking_2
Text Box
O
L
D

R
O
A
D



APPENDIX D

11. Reviews

The review process

111

11.2

11.3

114

115

11.6

The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises
licence or club premises certificate.

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any
of the four licensing objectives.

An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if
the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance
that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are
outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK
or the licensing authority’s electronic facility.

In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it
relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the
basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.

Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises
licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply
for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene
early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected
that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for
reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These
individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their
own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to
expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls
within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate
steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual
exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the
area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review.

Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies
for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved in this
process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined
previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing
authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should
achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to
9.19 of this Guidance.

Page 116

Revised Guldance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 89



11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

APPENDIX D

In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect
of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to
the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation
of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating
to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town
centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be
positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow
for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of
complaints, including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its
closing time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct
incidents of crime and disorder around a particular public house.

Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the authority
may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of licensed
premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the authority may also
consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating to
cumulative impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative
impact policies can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.

Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent
hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount
to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing.
Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees
and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives
this requirement.

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning
of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise
the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a
decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing
objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-
operation.

If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible
authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade
association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the
complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance
on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in
Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).

Repetitious grounds of review

11.12

A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:
» aground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or

» representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or
certificate was granted; or

» representations which would have been made when the application for the premises

e
90 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the L%ensing Act 2003



11.13

11.14

11.15

APPENDIX D

licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order.

The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These
regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website
(www.leqislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative
has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.16

11.17

11.18

11.19

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued in writing to the licence holder.

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in writing
— that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account
when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

Page 118

Revised Guldance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 91


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/

11.20

11.21

11.22

11.23

APPENDIX D

« modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

+ exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the
incidental live and recorded music exemption)™;

« remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that
the problems are the result of poor management;

» suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
» revoke the licence.

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be
an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.

Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise
to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough
action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

10 . . . . . .
See chapter 15 in relation to the licensing of live and recgcﬁ usI.

92 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003



APPENDIX D

Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24

11.25

11.26

11.27

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter
for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not
therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them.

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives
and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not
those of the individual licence holder.

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:

« for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;
+ for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

 for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected;

 for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;

« for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

* by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

+ as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

Page 120

Revised Guldance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 93



APPENDIX D

+ for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

» for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

 for unlawful gambling; and
« for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 Itis envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal
working compliance order

11.29 Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the
review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance order under
section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run
concurrently and are as follows:

» when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review — the determination must
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is
received;

» the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;

* notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice
and the start of the hearing).

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol
to children

11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly
and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at
the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme).
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

e
94 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the L%ensing Act 2003



APPENDIX E

TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL
Procedure for hearings — Premises/Personal Licences Sub-Committee

Licensing Act 2003 and Hearing Regulations 2005

The Licensing Committee officers and their roles

¢ The Committee Clerk (Democratic Services Officer) records the proceedings;

» The Legal Advisor provides independent advice to the Committee Members
on legal matters; and

« The Licensing Officer introduces the matter, outlines the application or review
as set out in the Report, and answers any questions Members may have.

Committee Members {Councillors):

Members have a responsibility to declare interests, those who declare Discloseable
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) as defined by The Relevant Authorities (DP1) Regulations
2012 must not take part in the hearing of the application.

If a Member declares a Pecuniary or Non-Pecuniary Interests, as defined by
Tendring District Council's Members' Code of Conduct (paragraphs 5 and 6), they
must consider the impact of that interest on participation and the public perception;

- Matters for Members to consider would cover. but not exclusively:
o they know the applicant or any of the objectors; or

o they wish either to support or oppose the granting or continuation of a
licence either personally or on behalf of their constituents.

o whether they have expressed a view on the application site especially,
if situated either in their ward or an adjacent ward;

Other Persons or Interested Parties:

This is the term given to an individual, body or business or a representative acting on
their behalf-that raises an objection or make a representation to an application for a
premises/personal licence. It should be noted that only the Police can make a
representation against a Personal Licence application however. These other
persons or interested parties are separate to Responsible Authorities, who may also
be a party to the hearing.

PROCEDURE

THESE SUB-COMMITTEES MEETINGS & THE HEARING ARE HELD IN PUBLIC,
UNLESS THERE IS A LEGAL REASON NOT TO DO SO, HOWEVER THESE ARE
IN LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES.

11

Page 122



APPENDIX E

Note: if the Sub-committee does not have an elected Chairman already, the election
of one Member as Chairman will be the first item of business.

HEARING
Step | By whom
1 Chairman The Chairman will welcome everyone to the meeting then:

a. introduce themselves and the other 2 members and
explain that the 4™ member (substitute) will not take
any part in the hearing or decision making process
unless there is a valid objection to one of the other
members sitting, if any interest declared debars a
member or a member falls ill;

b. announce the item to be considered:;

c. confirm that this procedure will be followed at the
hearing, including any maximum periods of time for
each side to put their case or objections (*);

d. ask all parties, including any “Responsible Authority”,
to introduce themselves indicating whether or not
they are represented, if they are calling any
withesses and if so to identify the witnesses they will
be calling. Where there are a number of objectors
they will be asked to confirm who their spokesperson
is if it is relevant or appropriate for them to do so.

e. if a party or Responsible Authority who has made
relevant representations is not present, the Sub-
Committee will decide whether they consider it in the
public interest to (a) continue with the hearing or (b)
defer it to enable the party or authority to attend. In
reaching a decision on this point, the Sub-Committee
will consider any information received from the party
either directly or via the Licensing Officer or any other
interested person/party where relevant or
appropriate;

f. remind all present that the Sub-Committee can only
make its decision based on the four licensing
objectives, namely:

(1) prevention of crime and disorder,

(2) public safety,

(3) prevention of public nuisance and
(4) protection of children from harm.

2|

Page 123



APPENDIX E

2 Licensing Will introduce the application or review, highlighting areas of
Officer contention or dispute.

3 Commiittee May ask questions of the Licensing Officer.
members

The Applicant’s case

(If a person or party requests a review of an existing licence, they would in effect be the
Applicant for the review. In those circumstances they would present their case following the
summary given by the Licensing Officer)

4 Applicant or | Will present their case and call withesses.
their
representative

5 Responsible | Each, in turn, may ask questions of the Applicant by way of
authorities or | clarification.
interested
Parties

6 Committee In turn, each may ask questions of the Applicant.
members

7 Applicant May ask any further questions of any witnesses to clear up

any points raised in the earlier questioning.

The Responsible Authorities and/or Interested Parties

8 Responsible | Will make their representations to the Sub-Committee.
Authorities
9 Applicant or | May ask questions of the Responsible Authorities by way of
their clarification.
representative
10 Other persons | May ask questions of the Responsible Authorities or
] Licensing Officer by way of clarification.
Note: this is not the time for other persons to put their
objections.
1" Committee May ask questions of the Responsible Authorities by way of
Members clarification. Committee can also ask questions of the
objectors by way of clarification.
12 interested At this point those who have objected to the application will
Parties be asked to present their objections and make observations

on the application if appropriate.

Page 124




APPENDIX E

13 | Applicant or | May ask questions of the Interested Parties /objectors by
their way of clarification.
representative

14 Committee May ask questions of the Interested Parties /objectors.
members

Closing statements or summary

15 Chairman Will ask:

a. both the Responsible Authorities and Interested
Parties /objectors to comment, briefly, on the
application or review and summarise their position.
No new issues can be raised at this point.

b. the applicant or their representative tc summarise the
application or review and briefly comment on the
representations or objections made.

c. if everyone is satisfied that they have said what they
wanted to say, but making clear that no new issues
can be raised at this point.

DECISION MAKING

16 Sub- Will retire to consider the application or review and may
Committee request the Legal Advisor and/or Committee Clerk to retire
with them.

RESUMING THE MEETING AND CONCLUSION

17 Legal Advisor | If legal advice has been given to the Members whilst in
retirement, this advice will be summarised and repeated in
the presence of all parties.

18 Chairman Will:
a. announce the decision made by the sub-committee
and the reasons for that decision;

b. advise that the decision, and reasons, will be
confirmed in writing to all the parties who made
representations; and

c. advise all parties of their rights of appeal to the
Magistrates’ Court.

4]+

Page 125



APPENDIX E

(*) after receiving copies of this procedure, all parties are requested to give the
Council’s Licensing Department an indication of the time estimated to present
their case. This will be taken into consideration when deciding whether
maximum periods of time will be necessary.

5|F

Page 126



APPENDIX E

TENDRING DISTRICT COUNCIL

THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS PROCEDURE

OUTLINE OF APPLICATION

Made by the Licensing Officer

APPLICATION
To be presented by the Applicant or their representative

Witnesses for the applicant (if any) to give evidence

QUESTIONS TO THE APPLICANT

By the Responsible Authorities, Interested Parties or Committee
Members

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

Each Responsible Authorities and its witnesses (if any) to present its case.

Only thosé
peaple who QUESTIONS TO THE RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES
have
submitted a
written INTERESTED PARTIES/OBJECTORS
objection in
the 28 day

chjection
period may QUESTIONS TO THE INTERESTED PARTIES / OBJECTORS

Each Interested Party/Objector to present their case.

speak.

CLOSING STATEMENTS

Made by each party starting with Interested Parties/Objectors,

then Responsible Authorities and finally the Applicant
Only matters

cantained
within written EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND ALL PARTIES
representations
can be raised.

MEMBERS CONSIDER APPLICATION AND REACH A DECISION

DECISION

All parties return and Decision read out. Parties advised
of right of appeal. Letter confirming to all parties.

Page



APPENDIX F

Inspection dated
28" February 2025

On 28 February 2025, the Home Office Immigration Officers attended 139 Old Road,
Clacton on Sea, Essex at approximately 1215hrs. Tendring District Council Licensing
Officers and Essex County Council Trading Standards Officers were also in

attendance at this visit.

It was reported by Immigration Officers that there was two people in the store at the
time of entering. One male was stacking shelves and a lady behind the counter in the
name of Kilimoly Tharmathas.

Immigration Officers carried out there checks and one male was detained and
removed from the premises.

Kilimoly Tharmathas telephoned the licence holder and DPS, Mr Suresh Theivendram
who attended the premises approximately 30 minutes later.

During the visit, Essex County Council Trading Standards seized a number of vapes
which should not be on sell within the premises.

Once Mr Suresh Theivendram arrived and was handed paper work from Immigration,
he started to become irritated with officers and was shouting at them stating that the
person removed, was not working at the premises and he would refuse to pay any
fines.

As Licensing Officers, we spoke to Mr Suresh Theivendram and confirmed if that was
the case, then only one member of staff would have been on the premises and he
would have been in breach of his licence again.

Mr Suresh Theivendram was asked to show CCTV footage of the day, two hours
before. With this he clicked and showed one camera with CCTV footage at 0800hrs
that morning. The images were not clear and you could not see very well. With this,
he was asked to show other CCTV cameras and at the time requested (1100hrs). With
this he was not willing to show any further CCTV and went on the phone.

Officers waited for him to show further CCTV but this was not forthcoming and the
inspection finished.

Page 128



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	5 Report of Assistant Director (Governance & Legal) - A.1 - Review of a Premises Licence - 139 Old Road, Clacton on Sea, CO15 3AT
	Appendix A - Summary of Application


